


With an organization driven to outperform the successes of yesterday, Coventry has an undeniable will to

win. We are seizing strategic opportunities across all segments of our business and executing at the highest

fevels. As we relentessly strive to exceed your expectations, Coventry will continue to find ways o win.

Coventry Health Care ("Coventry”) is a diversified national managed healthcare company based in Bethesda, Maryland,

operating health plans, insurance companies, network rental and workers’ compensation services companies. Through

its Commercial Business, Individual Consumer & Government Business, and Specialty Business Divisions, Coventry

provides a full range of risk and fee-based managed care products and services to a broad cross section of individuals,

employer and government-funded groups, government agencies, and other insurance carriers and administrators.
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COVENTRY HEALTH CARE // 1
Selected Consolidated Financial Information
(in thousands except per share and membership data)
December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Operations Statement Data'”
Operating revenues $7,733,756 $ 6,611,246  $ 5,311,969  $4,535,143  $3,576,905
Operating earnings 841,003 791,818 496,671 366,197 200,670
Earnings before income taxes 896,348 799,425 526,991 393,064 225,741
Net earnings 560,045 501,639 337,117 250,145 145,603
Basic earnings per share 3.53 318 2.55 1.89 1.09
Diluted earnings per share 3.47 3.10 2.48 1.83 1.05
Balance Sheet Data'V
Cash and investments $2,793,800 $2,062,893  $1,727.737  $1,405922 $1,119,120
Total assets 5,665,107 4,895,172 2,340,600 1,981,736 1,643,440
Total medical liabilities 1,121,151 752,774 660,475 597,190 558,599
Long-term liabilities 309,616 309,742 25,854 27,358 21,691
Debt 760,500 770,500 170,500 170,500 175,000
Stockholders’ equity 2,953,002 2,554,703 1,212,426 928,998 646,037
Operating Data'®
Medical loss ratio 79.3% 79.4% 80.5% 81.2% 83.3%
Operating earnings ratio 10.9% 12.0% 9.4% 8.1% 5.6%
Administrative expense ratio 17.3% 17.9% 11.5% 12.0% 12.2%
Basic weighted average shares cutstanding 158,60 157,965 132,188 132,170 133,203
Piluted weighted average shares outstanding 161,434 161,716 135,884 136,148 137,797
Total membership® 4,077,000 3,677,000 2,509,000 2,383,000 2,035,000
{1) Operations Statement Data include the resulss of operations of acquisitions since the date of acquisition. Balance Sheet Data reflect acquisitions as of December 31 of the
year of acquisition. See the notes to consolidated financial statements for detail on our acquisitions.

(2} Membership data reflects health plans, ail self-funded customers, and Medicare Part D membership.
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LETTER FROM THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

A Winning Strategy

2006 was another year of delivering results you
have come to expect from Coventry Health Care.
We told you that we would be a profitable player
in the Medicare Prescription Drug Program. We
are. We said that we would continue to grow the
business while maintaining our industry-leading
margins. We did. We assured you that we would
continue to operate our businesses with discipline,
integrity, and superior execution. We always have

and we always will.
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DALE 8. WOLF

Chief Executive Officer

In addition to keeping our promises, 2006 was another year characterized by significant accomplishments
both operationally and financially. We completed the integration of First Health Group with the expected
synergies realized and operations functioning seamlessly. This represented the largest acquisition in
Coventry’s history and | am very pleased with the way our team has been able to assimilate these assets.

The distribution arrangements that we implemented for our senior products were another significant
operational achievemnent during 2006. These teaming initiatives between distribution partners, national
retail chains, and our own Medicare-focused team were a key component of the results we delivered in the
Medicare Prescription Drug Program (Medicare Part D).

From a financial perspective, 2006 represented another year of the reliable and consistent success you
have come to expect from Coventry. Our revenues reached record levels of $7.7 billion while earnings contin-
ued 1o grow. We strengthened our balance sheet and served over 4 million members at year-end. Finally, we
topped the $1.0 billion mark in cash flow from operations and fully intend to strategically deploy our free
cash in the best interests of our shareholders.

with the First Health Group integration complete and our other initiatives on track, in 2006 |

announced a business realignment organizing the company into three operating units:

* Commercial Business Division
e [ndividual Consumer & Government Business Division

+ Specialty Business Division

This new structure serves to organize our businesses, regardless of their origin, 1o most effectively
capitalize on growth opportunities. We have already realized benefits from this strategic realignment and

expect strengthened positioning for our future endeavors,
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Commercial Division: The Cornerstone

The Commercial Business Division, comprised of the Health Plan group risk and ASQO, National
Accounts, Federal Employees Health Benefits Program (FEHBP), and Network Rental businesses, has always
represented the cornerstone of Coventry's operations. This is the business that got us started and is one that
continues to be a consistent and predictable performer today.

Building upon solid health plan roots, the Commercial Business Division has expanded dramatically
to now offer national capabilities with a broad and diverse product portfolio. This division provides services
to nearly 3 million customers in all 50 states offering both risk and non-risk products through our proprie-
tary national network. We also increased our local market presence by entering the Oklahoma and South
Carolina markets in 2006 with plans for additional local market expansion in 2007.

A key area of focus in this division is the small group business, which historically has been one of

Coventry’s strengths. With employment growth among small groups occurring at rates as much as three
times faster than the national average, this remains an attractive sector and a logical target for the Coventry ;
sales teams. Leveraging our local market presence, low cost structure, and technology such as our |
BenefitExpress broker quoting tool designed specifically with the small group demographic in mind, this
segment of the Commercial Division again grew impressively during 2006. We believe that local markets and
local employers are best served by Coventry’s tried and true model of maintaining a strong local health plan
presence. The Commercial Division also offers solutions to large employers on a full risk and self-funded
basis. Across the board, in all group sizes, we deliver a strong value proposition.

As you may recall, Coventry has always prided itself on a “low cost wins” mantra. That hasn’t changed
and is nowhere more evident than in this division. By continuing to relentlessly focus on the smallest details,
we achieve industry-best SG&A levels. By maintaining steadfast discipline in pricing our products, we deliver
consistently low medical cost ratios. Our local health plan presence allows us 1o create a highly competitive
medical cost structure both in terms of unit costs and through the results of medical management efforts.
Today, as always, Coventry's low cost focus atlows us to deliver industry-leading margins while still effectively

competing for commercial business.
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‘The Commercial Business Division completed another solid year in 2006, generating strong top-line growth
while maimtaining the discipline to deliver impressive earnings. By developing new products and focusing
on the most attractive market segments, this division will continue to produce the reliable and
consistent results that you have come to expect.

— Tom McDo~xoucn, President
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Individual Consumer & Government
Division: Growth, Growth, Growth

The Individual Consumer & Government Business Division is comprised of Individual commercial products
and all Medicare and Medicaid producis, with all three areas representing exceptional growth opportunities for
Coventry. We made great strides in 2006 with the introduction of the Medicare Part D product and early indications
point towards continued success in 2007 with our entrance into the Medicare Private-Fee-For-Service {PFFS) market.
Our Medicaid business is well positioned and our more recently introduced Individual product has seen early success.

With the implementation of the Medicare Part D program in 2006, the managed care industry was
presented with an unprecedented opportunity. We approached the opportunity methodically and prudently by
leveraging Coventry's collective company assets including our competitive pharmacy cost structure, underwriting
capabilities, and experience providing pharmacy management services in State programs. Furthermore, we
employed an approach that minimized spending your money on upfront investments, ultimately rewarding share-
holders with the creation of the 6th largest national presence with 687,000 members at year-end and total revenue
exceeding $650 million. More importantly, we targeted a 5% operating margin on this new business and ended
the year right on track.

As we looked towards 2007, we made the decision to expand our Medicare Advantage footprint both
geographically and to new products. Coventry introduced a Medicare PFFS product, Advantra Freedom, in 75% of
the counties in the United States. Leveraging our Part D experiences, we employed a similar approach in the
underwriting of the PFFS product and in the development of robust independent distribution partnerships cou-
pled with our internal group retiree sales force. We are pleased with our product positioning and the early success
of our distribution approaches. Through the month of January alone, enrollment had already exceeded our initial
expectations for the entire year. We expect this seized opportunity to produce more than $900 million of “new” rev-
enue to Coventry this year and we will keep you updated on the progress of this new product line throughout 2007.

But this isn't just a Medicare division—our Medicaid operations will produce over $1 billion of revenue in 2007.
We continue to focus on growing this business both organically through leveraging our government relationships
and through acquisitions.

We also expanded our footprint in the Individual business, the fastest growing segment of today’s health
insurance industry, by adding this product capability 1o nearly all of our health plan markets. By the end of 2006, we
were able to enroll 23,000 members. Our expectation to double the Individual business in 2007 is a perfect exam-

ple of the multiple ways that Coventry can seize growth opportunities that “move the needle.”




WINNING THROUGH GROWTH

2006 marked a transformative year for the Individual Consumer & Government Business Division. Our entry
inte Medicare Part D was a success by any measure while the products we developed for the Medicare PFFS
market have proven to be exceptionally well-received. This unprecedented expansion increases the breadth
of our relationships and continues to inprove our strategic positioning in the marketplace. We are already
preparing for new opportunities in 2008 and 2009. — FraN Soistman, Executive Vice President

==
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'MANAGED CARE SERVICES

Specialty Division: An Avenue for Expansion

The Specialty Business Division today consists of our workers’ compensation services business,
combining assets acquired in the First Health transaction with the recently completed acquisition of the
Concentra workers’ compensation managed care services businesses. Over time, our intention with this divi-
sion is to expand into other logical businesses related 1o the broad universe of financing and administering
health care.

Coventry's workers’ compensation services business is a market leader in providing managed care
services to workers’ compensation customers and is expected to prospectively generate well over $500 mil-
lion in annualized fee-based revenue. We are not an underwriter or risk assumer of workers' compensation
insurance. Instead, we provide managed care services to workers’ compensation carriers, third party admin-
istrators and self-insured programs. Given the combination of the previous First Health products and those
acquired from Concentra, we now offer a compelling value proposition to customers with expanded man-

aged care capabilities including:

¢ National Workers” Compensation Network

* Bill review

Pharmacy benefits management

Telephonic case management

Field case management

Medicare set-aside

Independent medical exams

As the portion of workers’ compensation claims attributable to medical costs continues to rise, our
customers ook to Coventry for cost-containment and managed care solutions, We will continue 10 combine
the workers’ compensation experience of the historical First Health and Concentra business with Coventry’s

managed care focus to provide a unique value proposition to our current and future customers.
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WISNNING PHROUGTE FPAYITYNSTON

The workers’ compensation services industry presents a unigue market opportunity to deliver value through
Coventry'’s integrated product offering. We look forward to providing a full spectrum of workers” compensa-
tion managed care services to our customers while firmly establishing ourselves as the clear-cut market leader
in this attractive fee-based segment of the industry.

— Jist McGarRry, President of Workers” Compensation Scrvices

1983 1893 2005
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AsTHEMEDICAL COMPONENT oF WORKERS COM-
PENSATION COSTS CONTINUES TO REPRESENT A LARGER SHARE
OF TOTAL COSTS TO PAYERS, COVENTRY WILL BE A LOGICAL

CHOICE TO DELIVER EFFECTIVE MANAGED CARE SOLUTIONS.
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Operational & Financial Excellence

All of these successes are made possible by the operational strength and solid financial discipline
which have long been a hallmark of the Coventry story. We always maintain a focus on the member with
our customer service operations performing exceptionally well in 2006 as claims inventories were down,
technology metrics all trended impressively and cost structures remained at industry-leading levels. Our
Medicare Part D implementation produced excellent customer satisfaction results and we have already seen
more of the same as we begin to provide service to our new Medicare PFFS members.

Similar accomplishments were seen in Coventry’s continued financial growth, with five-year trends of:

* 21% average annual revenue growth;
* 19% average annual growth in members served;

® 35% average annual increase in EPS.

While these statistics are impressive, they are made even more meaningful by the fact that we are
growing the business with financial discipline. Medical expenses represent the single largest “cost of goods
sold” component for our company and for our industry, yet these expenses have been controlled in all of
Coventry's lines of business with remarkable consistency. Our methodical approach to medical management
is seen through the “every patient, every day” philosophy we apply in each of our divisions. With similar
emphasis placed on managing SG&A costs, we have been able to consistently deliver the solid top-line and

bottom-line results that you've come to expect.




WINNING THROUGH DISCIPLINE
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COVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC.
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A Vision for the Future

I could not be more pleased with how Coventry is currently positioned. Our capital structure is solid
with over $400 million in free cash at year-end to deploy through a balance of strategic acquisitions
and share repurchases. Our core businesses continue to perform very well, Qur diverse revenue streams
remain a critical component of being adequately prepared for whatever the future of the managed care
industry holds. We always operate with a vision for the future and have multiple growth levers available
across our divisions.

In the Commercial Business Division, we are focused on doing the thousand litle things that are
critical to keep this business producing as it always has. This division generates the majority of the revenue
and earnings for the company yet still offers multiple opportunities to create incremental growth. We will

continue to capitalize on the small group risk market, the most profitable and fastest growing market

segment where we have historically done quite well. We also have opportunities to leverage the national
network by expanding into new geographies as we did in 2006 and as we have committed to do in 2007.
Our Individual Consumer & Government Business Division is fueling revenue and earnings
growth for our company and continues to present attractive growth prospects for the future. Medicare
Private-Fee-For-Service, our largest single initiative for 2007, is off to a fantastic start with more than 70,000

members enrolled as of January 1st. We are expecting corganic membership growth of 5%-10% in our



COVENTRY HEALTIT CARE ff 13

Medicare Advantage HMO business with entrance into 21 new counties. Medicaid membership is also
projected to increase organically as well as through the recent acquisition of approximately 30,000 members
in the western Missouri region effective February 2007. The Individual market continues to be a success story
for us as we have grown this business impressively with sales in our health plan markets. Every business in
this division is not only growing in scale but also growing profitably.

The Specialty Business Division, today the smallest of the three, will grow significantly in 2007 with
the successful completion of the Concentra workers’ compensation services businesses acquisition. By
gaining the wide range of capabilities that the Concentra acquisition will provide, we have greatly improved
the breadth of our offering to workers' compensation customers. This transaction will serve to strengthen
our strategic positioning as Coventry was already considered one of the market leaders in the provision of
workers’ compensation managed care services. Beyond this business, we will continue to lock for opportunities
to further expand this division both in terms of management and new business prospects.

Given all of these growth opportunities, the future successes of Coventry will be determined by our
ability to execute at the highest levels, just as we always have. The same principles that we've lived by in the
past, combining relentless focus with a “low cost wins” mentality and daily operational excellence, will con-
tinue to be the key ingredients 1o our winning strategy. We will strive to surpass the expectations of all of our
constituents which will result in delivering optimal results to you, our shareholders. Finally, [ would like to
thank every one of our more than 10,000 dedicated employees for making 2006 such a resounding success

and taking us one more step towards our full potential.

CDUA-G.\A.)

DALE B. WOLF
Chief Executive Officer
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Executive-Level Overview

General Operations

We are a national managed health care company based in Bethesda, Maryland operating health plans, insurance companies, network rental/
managed care services companies, and workers’ compensation services companies. We provide a full range of risk and fee-based managed care
products and services, including health maintenance organization {“HMQ"), preferred provider arganization (“PPQ"), point of service ["FOS"),
Medicare Advantage, Medicare Prescription Drug Plans, Medicaid, Workers' Compensation and Network Rental to a broad cross section of indi-
viduals, empiayer and government-funded groups, government agencies, and ather insurance casriers and administrators in all 50 states as well as
the District of Columbia and Puerta Rico.

Summary of 2006 Performance

* Health Plan membership decreased .9% aver the prior year, excluding the new Medicare Part D business.

+ Medicare Part D revenues of $669.9 million and membership of 687,000.

* Revenue increased 17% over the prior year.

« Health Plan medical loss ratio of 78.9% improved 60 basis points over the prior year.

= Selling, general and administrative expenses were 17.3% of aperating revenues, a decrease of 60 basis points from the prior year.

» Dperating margin of 10.9% declined 110 basis points over the prior year.

= Diluted earnings per share increased 11.9% over the prior year.

» Cash flows from operations were $1,066 million {including $348.6 million related to the new Medicare Part D business}, a 32.6% increase over
the prior year.

« Total cash and investments was $2.8 billion, a 35.4% increase over the prior year.

Operating Revenue and Products

We generate our operating revenues from premiums and fees from a broad range of managed care and management service products. Premiums for our
risk praducts, for which we assume full underwriting risk, can vary. For example, premiums for aur commercial PPQ and commescial POS products are
typically lower than our commercial HMO premiums due to medical underwriting and higher deductibles and co-payments that are typically required of
the commercial PPO and commercial POS members, Premium rates for our government programs, Medicare and state-sponsored managed Medicaid, are
largely established by governmental regulatory agencies in conjunction with competitive bidding processes. Medicare products, including Part D, have
risk adjusted premium rates at the member level to help align expected cost and reimbursement. These gavernment products are offered in selected
markets where we believa we can achieve profitable growth based upon favorable reimbursement levels, provider costs and regulatory climates.

Revenue for our management services products {“non-risk”) is generally a fixed administrative fee, provided on a predetermined coniractual basis
or on a percentage-of-savings basis, for access to our health care provider networks and health care management services, far which we do nat
assume underwriting risk. The management services we provide typically include health care provider network management, clinical management,
pharmacy benefit management ["PBM"”), bill review, claims repricing, fiscal agent services (generally for state entitlement programs}, claims pro-
cessing, utilization review and quality assurance.

Operating Expenses
Our medical costs include medical claims paid under contractual relationships with a wide variety of providers and capitation arrangements.
Medical costs also include an estimate of claims incurred but not reported.

We maintain provider networks that furnish health care services theough contractual arrangements with physicians, hospitals and other health care
providers. Prescription drug benefits are provided through a formulary comprised of an extensive list of drugs. Drug prices are negotiated at discounted
rates through a naticnal network of pharmacies.
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We have capitation arrangements for certain ancillary heath care services, such as mental health care, and a small percentage of our membership
is covered by global capitation arrangements. Under the typical arrangement, the provider receives a fixed percentage of premium to cover costs of
all medical care or of the specified ancillary services provided to the globally capitated members. Under some capitated arrangements, physicians
may alse receive additional compensation from risk sharing and other incentive arrangements. Global capitation arrangements limit our exposure to
the risk of increasing medical costs, but expose us to isk as to the adequacy of the financial and medical care resources of the provider organization.
We are ultimately responsible for the coverage of our members pursuant to the custamer agreements. To the extent that the respective provider
organization faces financial difficulties or otherwise is unable to perform its obligations under the capitation arrangements, we will be required to
perform such obligations. Consequently, we may have to incur costs in doing s in excess of the amounts we would otherwise have to pay under the
original global or ancillary capitation through our contracted netwaork arrangements.

We have established systems that monitor the availability, appropriateness and effectiveness of the patient care we provide. We collect utilization
data in each of our markets that we use to analyze over-utilization or under-utilization of services and assist our health plans in arranging for appropriate
care for their members and improving patient outcomes in a cost efficient manner. Medical directors also monitor the utilization of diagnostic services
and encourage the use of outpatient surgery and testing where appropriate. Each health plan collects data showing each physician’s utilization profile
for diagnostic tests, specialty referrals and hospitalization and presents such data ta the health plan’s physicians. The medical directors monitor these
results in an effort to ensure the use of medically, cost-effective appropriate services.

We operate regional service centers that perform claims processing, premium billing and collaction, enrollment and customer service functians for
aur health plans. Our regional service centers enable us to take advantage of econemies of scale, implement standardized management practices at
each of our plans and capitalize on the benefits of our integrated information technology systems. We centralize the underwriting and product pricing
functions for our health plans, which allows us to utilize our underwriting expertise and a disciplined priging strategy at each of our health plans. First
Health operating expenses consist primarily of salaries and related costs for personnel invalved in the administrative services offered by the Company.
To a lesser extent, the operating expenses include facility expenses and information processing costs needed ta pravide those administrative services.

Cash Flows

We generate cash through operations. As a profitable company in an industry that is not capital equipment intensive, we have not needed to use
financing methods to fund operations. While we did incur debt (as described in Note | to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K},
the entire proceeds were used to finance an acquisition and were not used to fund operations, Our grimary use of cash is to pay medical claims. Any
excess cash has historically been used for acquisitions, to prepay indebtedness and for repurchases of our common stock.

Critical Accounting Policies

We consider the accounting policies described below critical in preparing our consolidated financial statements. Critical accounting policies are ones
that require difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain. The judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of these policies include significant estimates and assumptions made by us using
information available at the time the estimates are made. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Managed care premiums are recorded as revenue in the month in which members are entitled to service. Premiums are based on both a per-subscriber
contract rate and the number of subscribers in our records at the time of billing. Premium billings are generally sent to employers in the month
preceding the month of coverage. Premium billings may be subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in membership as a result of retroactive termina-
tions, additions, or other changes. Due to early timing of the premium billing, we are able to identify in the current month the retroactive adjustments
far two subsequent months billings. Current period revenues are adjusted to reflect these retroactive adjustments.

Based on information received subsequent to generating premium billings, historical trends, bad debt write-offs and the collectibility of specific accounts,
we estimate, on a monthly basis, the amount of bad debt and future membership retroactivity and adjust our revenue and altowances accordingly.

As of December 31, 2006, we maintained allowances for retroactive hilling adjustments of approximately $20.1 million compared with approxi-
mately §$20.6 million at December 31, 2005. We also maintained allowances for doubtful accounts of approximately $1.9 million and $3.6 million as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The calculation for these allowances is based an a percentage of the gross accounts receivable with
the allowance percentage increasing for the older receivables.
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We also receive premium payments from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") on a monthty basis for our Medicare membership.
Membership and category eligibility are periodically recanciled with CMS and can result in adjusiments to revenue. Premiums collected in advance
are recorded as deferred revenue.

We contract with the United States Office of Personnel Management {"0OPM") and with various federal employee organizations to provide health
insurance benefits under the Federal Employees Health Benefits Program. These contracts are subject to government regulatory oversight by the
Office of the Inspector General {"01G") of OPM who perform periodic audits of these benefit pragram activities to ensure that contractors meet their
contractual obligations with OPM. For our managed care contracts, the OIG conducts periodic audits to, among other things, verify that premiums
established under its contracts are in compliance with community rating requirements under the FEHB Program. The OPM may seek premium
refunds or institute other sanctions against health plans that participate in the program. For our experignce-rated plans, the OIG focuses on the
appropriateness of contract charges, the effectiveness of ¢laims processing, financial and cost accounting systems, and the adequacy of internal
controls to ensure proper contract charges and tenefits payments. The 0IG may seek refunds of costs charged under these contracts or institute
other sanctions against health plans. These audits are generally a number of years in arrears. We record reserves, on an estimated basis annually,
for audit and other contract adjustments based on apprepriate guidelines. Any differences between actual results and estimates are recorded in the
year the audits are finalized.

We enter inta performance guarantees with employer groups where we pledge that we will meet certain standards. These standards vary widely
and could involve customer service, member satisfaction, claims processing, claims accuracy, telephong on-hold time, etc. We also enter into
financial guarantees which can take various forms including, among others, achieving an annual aggregate savings threshold, achieving a targeted
level of savings per-member per-month or achieving overall network penetration in defined demographic markets. For each guarantee, we estimate
and record performance based revenue after considering the relevant contractuaf terms and the data available for the performance based revenue
calculation. Pro rata performance based revenue is recognized on an interim basis pursuant to the rights and obligations of each party upon
termination of the contracts.

Medical Claims Expense and Liabilities

Medical fiabilities consist of actual claims reported but not paid and estimates of health care services incurred but not reported. Medical liabilities
estimates are developed using actuarial principles and assumptions that consider, among other things, historical claims payment patterns, provider
reimbursement changes, historical tilization trends, current levels of authorized inpatient days, other medical cost inflation factors, membership
levels, benefit design changes. seasonality, demographic mix change and other relevant factors.

We employ a team of actuaries that have used a set of reserve medels that are based on a consistent methodology. Although the calculation is
consistent, we adjust our estimates of medical utilization and components of medical cost trends to amounts we estimate to be apprapriate. The
medical liabilities are an accumulation of the results from many individual models, each calculated at the statutory leve! and representing different
markets and/or products. These reserve models do not calculate separate amounts for reported but not paid and incusred but not reported, but rather
a single estimate of medical claims liabilities. These reserve models make vse of hoth historical claim payment patterns as wall as emerging medical
cost trends to project our best estimate of claim liabilities, Within these models, historical data of paid claims is formatted into claim triangles which
compare claim incurred dates to the claim payment dates. This information is analyzed to create “completion factors”™ that represent the average
percentage of total incurred claims that have been paid through a given date after being incurred. Completion factors are applied to claims paid
through the financial statement date to estimate the ultimate claim expense incurred for the current period. Actuarial estimates of claim liabilities
are then determined by subtracting the actual paid claims from the estimate of the ultimate incurred claims.

Actuarial standards of practice generally require the actuarial developed medical claims estimates to cover obligations under an assumption of
moderately adverse conditions. Adverse conditions are situations in which the actual claims are expected to be higher than the otherwise estimated
value of such claims. In many situations, the claims paid amount experienced will be less than the estimate that satisfies the actuarial standards of
practice. Medical claims liabilities are recorded at an amount we estimate to be appropriate. Adjustments of prior years estimates may result in
artditional medical costs or, as we have experienced during the last several years, a reduction in medical costs in the period an adjustment was
made. Dur reserve maodels have historically developed favorably suggesting that the accrued Habilities calculated from the models were mare than
adequate to cover our ultimate liability for unpaid claims. We believe that this favorable development is a result of good communications between
our health plans and our actuarial staff regarding medical utilization, mix of provider rates and other components of medical cost trend.
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The following table presents the components of the change in medical claims liahilities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively {in thousands).

2006 2005 2004

Medical liabilities, beginning of period § s $ 660,475 $ 597,190
Acquisitions"! — 41,895 —
Reparied Medical Costs

Current year 5,570,872 4,672,009 4,257,942

Prior year developments {130,908) {121,138) {72,047}
Total reported medical costs 5,439,964 4,550,871 4,185,895
Claim Payments

Payments for current year 4,852,359 4,030,685 3.691,092

Payments for prior year 54251 469,782 431,518
Total clgim payments 5,394,930 4,500,467 4122610
Part D Related Subsidy Liabilities 323,343 — —
Medical liabilities, end of period $1.121,151 § 752,774 $ 660,475
Supplemental Infarmation:

Pricr year development'?! 2.9% 29% 2.0%

Current year paid percent™ 81.1% 86.3% 86.7%

"Acquisition bafances represent medical liabilities of the acquired company as of the applicable acquisition date.
Priar year reported medical costs in the current year as a percentage of prior year reported madical costs.
M Current year claim payments as a percentage of current year reported medical costs.

The negative amounts noted as “prior year” medical costs are favorable adjustments for claim astimates being settled far amounts less than ariginally
anticipated. As noted above, these favorable restatements from original estimazes cccur due to changes in medical utilization, mix of pravider rates
and other compoenents of medical cost trends. Medical claim liabilities are generally paid within several months of the member receiving service
from the provider. Accordingly, the 2008 prior year medical costs relate almost entirely to claims incurred in calendar year 2005 and the increase in
prior year medical cost was driven primarily by lower than anticipated medical cost increases, growth in the medical cost base and uncertainties at
the prior year-end regarding our Louisiana operations and the effects of Hurricane Katrina.

The Medicare Part D relaied subsidy liabilities identified in the table above represent subsidy amounts received from CMS for reinsurance and for
cost sharing related to low income individuals. These subsidies are recorded in medical liabilities and we do not recognize premium revenue or claims
expense for these subsidies. Following the final settlement in 2007 related to the 2006 plan year, any remaining balances from these subsidy payments
will be refunded to CMS.

for the more recent incurred months, the percentage of claims paid to claims incurred in those months is generally low. As a result, the completion
factor methodology is less reliable for such months. For that reason, incurred claims for recent months are not projected solely from historical
completion and payment patterns. Instead, they are projecied by estimating the claims expense for those months based upon recent claims expense
levels and health care trend levels, or “trend factors.” As these months mature over tima, the two estimates {completion factor and trend) are
blended with completion factors being used exclusively for older months.

Within the reserve setting methodologies for inpatient and non-inpatient services, we use certain assumptions. For inpatient services, authorized
days are used for utilization factors, while cost trend assumptions are incorporated inta per diem amounts. The per diem estimates reflect anticipated
effects of changes in retmbursement structure and severity mix. For non-inpatient services, a composite trend assumgtion is applied which reflects
anticipated changes in cost per service, provider contracts, utilization, and other factors.
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Changes in the completion factors, trend factors and utilization factors can have a significant effect on the claim liability. The following example
provides the estimated effect to our December 31, 2006 unpaid claims liability assuming hypothetical changes in the completion, trend, and inpa-
tient day factors. While wa believe the selsction of factors and ranges provided are reasonable, certain factors and actual results may differ.

Completion Factor Claims Trend Factor Inpatient Day Factor
{Decrease] {Decrease) {Decrease)
Increase Increase (Decrease) Increase {Decrease) Increase
{Decrease} in Unpaid Increase in Unpaid Increase in Unpaid
in Completion Claims in Claims Claims in Inpatient Claims
Factor Liabilities Trend Factor Liabilities Day Factor Liabilities
33% $(21,471) (5.0%]) ${57.723) (5 0%) $013.127)
20% ${13,196) {2.5%] $128.861) [2.5%) $ i6.564)
1.0% $ (6,671) {1.0%) ${11,545} (1.0%) $ (2,625)
(1.0%;} $ 6820 1.0% $ 11,545 1.0% $ 2628
{2.0%} $13,796 25% $ 28,861 25% $ 6,564
{3.3%} $ 23304 5.0% $ 57,723 5.0% 313327

We also establish reserves, if required, for the probability that anticipated future health care costs and contract maintenance costs under the group
of existing contracts will exceed anticipated future premiums and reinsurance recoveries on those contracts.

Accruals are continually monitored and reviewed, and as settlements are made or accruals adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations.
Changes in assumptions for medical costs caused by changes in actual experience could tause these estimates to change in the near term. Certain
situations require judgment in setting reserves, such as system conversions, processing interruptions, environmental changes or other factors.

We believe that the amount of medical liabilities is adeguate to cover our ultimate liability for unpaid claims as of December 31, 2006; however,
actual claim payments and othar items may differ from established estimates.

Investments

We account for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No, 115—"Accounting fer Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities.” We invest primarily in fixed income securities and classify all of our investments as available-for-sale. Investments are
evaluated on an individual security basis at least quarterly to determing if declings in value are other-than-temporary. In making that determination,
we consider all available evidence relating to the realizable value of a security. This evidence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

« adverse financial conditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or ather variables;

+ the length of the time and the extant to which the fair value has been less than cost;

« the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;

= qur intent and ability to retain our investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow far any anticipated recavery in fair value;
+ glimination or reduction in dividend payments, or scheduled interest and principal;

+ rating agency downgrade of a debt security; and

+ expected cash flows of a debt security.

Temporary declines in value of investments classified as available-for-sale are netted with unrealized gains and reported as a net amount in a
separate componant of stockholders’ equity. A decline in fair value below amortized cost that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted for

as a realized loss and the write down is included in earnings. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on a specific
identification basis.
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The fallowing table shows our investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, at December 31, 2006, aggregated by investment category and
length of time that individual securities have heen in a continuous unrealized loss position {in thousands).

Less than 12 months 12 manths or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Description of Securities Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
State and municipal bonds $ 67,946 ${275) $202,849 § 13,240} $270,795 3 (3,515}
U.S. Treasury & agency securities 25,535 L] 5717 (750) 82,706 {827}
Mortgage-hacked securities 40,021 (140) 126,151 {2,920) 166,172 (3.060)
Asset-backed securives 12,909 {26) 33239 (734) 46,48 {760)
Corporate debt and other securities 9,045 {46) 123,032 {2,918 132,077 (2,964)
$155,456 $(564) $542 442 $(10,962} $697.898 $(11,126)

The securities presented in this table do not meet the criteria far an other-than-temporarily impaired investment. The unrealized loss is almost
exclusively the result of interest rate increases and not unfavorable changes in the credit ratings associated with these securities. These invest-
ments are not in high risk industries or sectors and we intend to hold these investments for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in
market value, which may be maturity.

Goodwill and Other Long-lived Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets that have indefinite lives are subject to a periodic assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based
test. For our impairment analysis of the Health Plan segment goodwill, we used three approaches to identify the fair value of our goodwill and other
intangible assets: a market approach, a market capitalization approach and an income approach. The market approach estimates a business's fair
value by analyzing the recent sales of similar companies. The market capitalization approach is based on the market value of our total shares oui-
standing, The income approach is based on the present value of expected future cash flows. The income approach involves estimating the present
value of the company's estimated future cash flows, and discounting these cash flows at a given rate of return, All three approaches were reviewed
together for consistency and commonality,

For our impairment analysis of the First Health segment goodwitl and indefinite-lived intangible asset, we engaged an independent business valuation
firm to assist us in our analysis. For the First Health goodwill impairment analysis, we relied primarily on the income approach and secondarily on
the market approach. For the First Health indefinite-lived asset, we relied on two separate variations of the income approach. Each approach was
reviewed together for consistency and commanality.

Under the income approach, we assumed certain growth rates, capital expenditures, discount rates and terminal growth rates in our calculations,
if the assumptions used in our fair-value-based tests differ from actual results, the estimates underlying our goodwill impairment tests could be
adversely affected. Any impairment charges that may result wilf be recorded in the period in which the impairment is identified. We have not
incurred an impairmenti charge related to goadwill or indefinite lived intangibles. See Note € to the consolidated financial statements for additional
disclosure related te intangible assets.

Our remaining long-lived assets consist of property and equipment and other finite-lived intangible assets. These assets are depreciated or amor-
tized over their estimated useful life, and are subject to tmpairment reviews. In accordance with Statement of Position {"SOP") 98-1, "Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” the cost of internally developed software is capitalized and included in
property and equipment. We capitalize costs incurred during the application development stage for the development of internal-use software.
These costs primarily relate 1o payroll and payroli-related costs for emptoyees along with costs incurred for external consuttants who are directty
associated with the internal-use software project. We periodically review long-lived assets whenever adverse events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. In assessing recoverability, we must make assumptions regarding estimated future
cash flows and other factors to determing if an impairment loss may exist, and, if so, estimate fair value. We also must estimate and make assump-
tiens regarding the useful life we assign to our long-lived assets. If these estimates or iheir related assumptions change in the future, we may be
required to record impairment losses or change the useful life, including accelerating depreciation for these assets.
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We account for share based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 {revised
2004), "Shared-Based Payment” {*FAS 123R"). Under the fair value recognition provisions of FAS 123R, determining the apprapriate fair value
model and calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards require the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the
share-based payment awards and stock price volatility. We have determined that a blend of the implied volatility of our tradeable options and the
historical valatility of the Company’s share price is a better indicator of expected volatility and future stock price trends than historical volatility
alone. Therefore, the expected volatility in 2006 was based on a blend of market-based implied volatility and the historical volatility of our stock.
The assumptions vsed in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent our best estimates. In addition, we are required to
estimate the expected forfeiture rate and recognize expense only far those shares expected to vest. If our actual forfeiture rate is materially differ-
ent from our estimate, the stock-based compensation expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period.
See Note F to the Caonsolidated Financial Statements in [tem 8 for a further discussion on stock-hased compensation.

New Accounting Standards

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board [FASB} issued “Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements
in accordance with SFAS No. 109, FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial position already taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. For a tax benefit to be recognized, a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained upoen examination
by applicable taxing authorities. The benefit recognized is the amount that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upan final settlement
of the tax position. FIN 48 was effective for the Company as of January 1, 2007. The change in net assets as a result of applying this pronouncement
will be a change in accounting principle with the cumulative effect of the change required to be treated as an adjustment ta the opening balance of
retained earnings. The Company’s evaluation of the impact of adoption of FIN 48 is ongoing, and it is anticipated that the adoption of FIN 48 will not
have a material impact on the Company’s January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings.

Acquisitions

During the three years ended December 31, 2006, we completed two business combinations and a membership purchase. These business combi-
nations are all accounted for using the purchase methed of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results of each acquisition have been included
in our consolidated financial statements since their effective date of acquisition. The purchase price for each busingss combination was allocated
to the assets, including the identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities based on estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the
net identifiahle assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. The purchase price of our membership purchases is allocated to identifiable intangible
assets and is being amartized over a useful life of ten to twenty years.

The following table summarizes all business combinations and membership purchases for the three years ended December 31, 2006. The puschase
price of each business combination includes the payment for net worth and estimated transition costs. The purchase price shown for recent acquisi-
tions, in milliens, is inclusive of all retroactive balance sheet settlements and transaction cost adjustments.

Purchase
Effective Date Market Price

Business Cambinations
First Health Group Corp. ("First Health”) January 28, 2005 Multiple Markets $1,695
Pravider Synergies, L.L.C. ("Provider Synergies”) January 1, 2006 Multipie Markets § 2

Membership Purchases
OmniCare Health Ptan {"OmniCare”) October 1, 2004 Michigan $ 13
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Effective January 28, 2005, we completed our acquisition of First Health. First Health is a full service national health benefits services company
that serves the group health, workers’ compensation and state public program markets. Each outstanding share of First Health common stock was
converted into a right to receive $9.375 cash and 0.2687 shares of Caventry common stock. As a result of the merger, we paid $863.1 million in cash and
issued approximately 24.7 million shares of our common stock to stockholders of First Health. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
methad of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results of First Health have been included in our consolidated financial statements since the date
of acquisition. The purchase price for First Health was allocated to the assets, including identifiable intangible assets and liabilities, based on estimated
fair values. For additional information regarding the First Health acquisition, please refer to Note B ta our consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2006, we completed the acquisiticn of Provider Synergies, an Ohio limited liability company. Provider Synergies manages preferred
drug lists and negotiates rebates on behalf of state government and commercial clients. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results of Provider Synergies have been included in our consolidated financiai statements since the date
of acguisition. The pro forma effects of this acquisition were not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Membership

The following table presents our Health Plan membership as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands} and the percentage change in member-
ship between these dates.

December 31, Percent
2006 2005 Change
Risk membership:
Commercial 1,450 1,486 (2.4%)
Medicare 80 75 6.7%
Medicaid n 393 (51%)
Total risk membership 1,903 1.954 {2.6%)
Non-risk membership 621 592 49%
Total membership 2,524 2,54% 10.9%)

Commercial insured membership decreased over the prior year end due to losses experienced in our Pennsylvania market and the expected loss of
commercial insured members in our Louisiana operations during the first half of 20086, primarily due to Hurricane Katrina. Additionally, there were a
few large groups changing from a risk product to a non-risk product. These losses were partially offset by gains in employer group business in other
markets such as Delaware, Kansas and Georgia and also by growth in individual business across multiple markets.

Medicaid membership decreased over the prior year end due to changes in the eligibility requirements for Medicaid beneficiaries throughout the
Missouri market as well as the state of Nerth Carolina’s termination of its existing managed care program during the third quarter resulting in a loss
of approximately 7.400 members.

The increase in non-risk membership was attributable tc organic growth in various markets as well as a few large groups changing from a risk
product to a non-risk product.
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Results of Operations

The following table is provided to facilitate a more meaningfui discussion regarding the comparison of our operations for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006 (in thousands, except earnings per share and membership datal.

Increase Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease) 2005 2004 {Decrease}
Consolidated Business
Total operating revenues $7,733.756 $6.611,246 170%  $6,611,246 $5,311,969 245%
Operating earnings $ 841,003 3 791818 62% § 791818 $ 49657 59.4%
Operating earnings as a % of revenue 10.9% 12.0% {1.1%!} 12.0% 9.4% 26%
et earnings $ 560,045 § 501,639 116% § 501,639 $ 337117 48.8%
Diluted earnings per share s 347 $ 3.10 13%% § 350 3 248 75.0%
Selling, general and administrative as a percentage of revenue 17.3% 17.9% {0.6%) 17.9% 11.5% 6.4%
Health Plan Business
Managed Care Premium Yields {per member per month):
Commercial $ 25952 $ 246.48 53% § 24646 § 22659 B.8%
Medicare Advantage $ 85128 $ 76558 120% § 765.58 $ 69596 10.0%
Medicaid $ 167.30 § 157.52 62% § 15752 § 14523 8.5%
Medicare Part D $ 9048 nfa nfa nfa n/a nfa
Medical Costs {per member per month):
Commercial $ 20166 $§ 19337 43% § 19337 § 179N 7.9%
Medicare Advantage $ 681.07 $ 61455 108% § 61455 $ 57992 6.0%
Medicaid $ 14318 $ 13332 74% § 13332 $ 12688 51%
Medicare Part D $ 7642 nfa n/a nfa n/a n/a
Medical Loss Ratios:
Commercial 11.1% 785% (0.8%) 78.5% 79.1% {0.6%)
Medicare Advantage 19.4% 80.3% {0.9%) 80.3% 83.3% (3.0%)
Medicaid 85.6% B46% 1.0% 84.6% 87.4% 12.8%)
Total 78.9% 795% [0.6%) 79.5% 80.5% {1.0%)
Medicare Part D 84.5% n/a nfa n/a n/a na
Administrative Statistics:
Selling, general and administrative as a percentage of revenue 1.7% 11.4% 0.3% 11.4% 11.5% (0.1%)
Days in medical liatilities™ 55.0 586 {0.6) 55.6 H5.8 0.2
First Health Business®
Membership
National Accounts
On-going accounts 460,000 669,000 669,000 nfa
Run-out®™ 32,000 90,000 90,000 nfa
Total National Accounts 492,000 759,000 759,000 n/a
Mail Handlers 406,000 462,000 462,000 nfa
Revenue by preduct lines
National Accounts $ 113,990 $ 141,783 $ 141,283 n/a
Federal Employees Health Benefit Plan 208,177 204,678 204,678 n/a
Network Rental 126,573 89,442 89,442 nfa
Group Health Subtotal 448,740 435,403 435,403 n/a
Medicaid/Public Sector 184,503 183,197 183,197 nfa
Workers' Compensation 206,220 193714 193,14 n/a
Specialty Business Subtotal 330,723 376911 376,911 n/a
Total First Health Revenues . § 839,463 $ 812314 § 812314 nfa
Administrative Statistics:
Selling, general and administrative as a percentage of revenue 64.6% 64.9% 64.9% nfa

WExciudes Medicare Part D; PRasults of Dperations includes First Health since January 78, 2005, the date of acquisition; and ™ Company is still providing services 1o
terminated customers.
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Comparison of 2006 1o 2005

Managed care premium revenue increased as a result of new business related to our Medicare Part D products and as a result of rate increases that
occurred throughout ail markets. Medicare Part D business accounted for $669.9 million of managed care premium revenue in 2006 which excludes $32.6
million attributable to the estimated CMS risk-sharing payments that will be due to CMS upon the final settlement in 2007 far the 2006 plan year.

Additionally, we have quota share reinsurance arrangements with two of aur Medicare Part 9 distribution partners. As a result of the quota sharing
arrangements, we ceded Medicare Part D premium revenue to these partners of $65.8 million. This amount is excluded from the $669.9 million of
reported Medicare Part O revenue. Before subtracting the quota share ceded revenue, the premium yield, per member per month, for Medicare Part D
business would have been $8.88 higher than the $30.48 reported. When reviewing the premium yield for Medicare Part D business, adjusting for the
ceded revenue is useful for comparisons ta competitars that may not have similar ceding arrangements.

Commercial premium yields (premium per member per month] increased as a result of rate increases that occurred throughout all markets, The reparted
commercial premium yield increase of 5.3% is lower than the rate increases on renewing business due to a mix change in the types of plans being
purchasad as new business (such as a change to lower benefit plans); the types of plans being selected by renewing members when they have a
choice among multiple options {such as a change to higher deductible, lower premium plans); and the termination of certain large groups which had high
costs and high premium yields. Medicare Advantage premium yields increased as a result of the rate increases from the annual Competitive Bid filings.
Medicaid premium yields increased as a result of rate increases effective January 1 and July 1, 2006 in Missouri, our largest Medicaid market.

Management services ravenue decreased partiaily as a result of declines in membership in the National Accounts and Federal Employees Health
Benefit Plan sectors of the First Health segment. Additionally, the implementation of Medicare Part D resulted in a decline of First Health pharmacy
administration fee based revenue compared to the prior year, although this decline is more than offset by the increased revenue from our new
Medicare Part D business discussed above in the managed care premium revenue section. These decreases are partialty offset by reporting a full
year of First Health results in 2006. First Health was acquired on January 28, 2005 and therefore only results from January 28, 2005 through
December 31, 2005 are included in aur 2005 results of operations.

Medical costs have increased as a result of new business related to our Medicare Part D products and as a result of medical trend. Medicare Part D
medical costs totaled $565.9 million. Excluding Medicare Part O business, Health Plan medical costs as a percentage of premium revenue have
declined 0.6% compared with the prior year period. The decline is primarily a result of premium increases and better than expected cost trends. The
better than expacted cost trends were primarily attributed to lower inpatient and outpatient utilization and the uncertainties at the prior year-end
regarding our Louisiana operations and the effects from Hurricane Katrina. Days in total medical claims liakiiities decreased slightly from the prigr
year due primarily to faster claim receipts and continually improved processing cycle times.

Selling, general and administrative expense increased primarily as a result of costs related to the new Medicare Part D business in 2008, reporting
a full year of First Health results in 2008, recognizing stock option expense related to the adoption of SFAS 123(R) and increased salary expenses due
to annual compensation increases. However, these increases are partially offset by synergies gained subsequent to the acquisition of First Health.
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue have improved as a result of these achieved synergies, continuing revenue
growth and success in controlling gverall administrative costs.

Depreciation and amartization increased as a result of reporting a full year of First Health results in 2006 and as a result of an increase in property
and equipment over the past two vears, primarily computer equipment and software related to our First Health business.

Interest expense was higher in the pricr year as a result of the refinancing of our credit facilities during the priar year second quarter. As a result of the
refinancing, we wrote off $5.4 millior: of deferred financing costs in the prior year second quarter related to the originat credit facilities associated with
the First Health acquisition. Additionally, our debt has declined over the last two years and, as a result, interest expense related to the indebtedness
has also declined.

Other income increased as a result of a larger investment portfolio and a rise in interest rates during 2005 and 2006.

Qur provision for income taxes increased almost exclusively due to an increase in earnings. The effective tax rate remained relatively flat at 37.5% in
2006 compared to 37.3% in 2005.
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Comparison of 2005 to 2004

Managed care premium revenue increased as a resuit of rate increases that occurred throughout all markets and as a result of acquisitions.
Commercial yields (premium per member per month} increased as a result of rate increases on renewals. Medicare yields increased as a result of
the rate increases on January 1, 2005 from the annual Adjusted Community Rating filings. Medicaid yields increased as a result of a rate increase
of 6.5% effective January 1, 2005 in Missouri, our largest Medicaid market, and as a result of the OmniCare acquisition which has a higher yield than
our historical Medicaid membership. The acquisition of OmniCare effective October 1, 2004 and First Health effective January 28, 2005 accounted
for $151.9 million of the increase in managed care premium revenue over the prier year. The First Health acquisition closed January 28, 2005 and,
therefore, only results from January 28, 2005 through December 31, 2005 are included in our results of operations.

Management services revenue increased almost entirely due to the acquisition of First Health. The acquisition of First Health accounted for $764.0
million of the increase in management services revenue over the priar year.

Medical costs have increased due to medical trend and acquisitions. However, Health Plan medical expense as a percentage of managed care premium
revenue has improved to 79.5% compared to B0.5% in the prior year. This favorable change was attributabie te premium rate increases discussed
above outpacing medical trend in each of our Health Plan lines of business. The favorable change was alsa attributable to favorable inpatient utiliza-
tion during 2005, particularly in the third and fourth quarters, and a fiu season in the first quarter of 26045 that was not as severa as it has been in
previous years. Total reported commercial medical trend {per member per month), net of buydowns, was 7.9% in 2005. Days in total medical claims
liabilities decreased slightly fram the prior year due primarily to faster claim receipts and continually improved processing cycle times.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased primarily due to narma| operating costs of First Health, which accounted for $523.7 million of
the increase in selling, general and administrative expense. Additional increases include an increase in salary expense, Medicare Part D implementation
costs and a fult twelve months of normal operating costs of OmniCare. Salary expenses, excluding acquisitions, have increased due to annual com-
pensation increases and additional amortization expense related to restricted shares of common stock granted in 2004 and 2005. However, Health
Plan selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue have improved as a result of continuing revenue grawth and success
in controlling administrative costs.

Depreciation and amortization increased almost exclusively as a result of the acquisition of First Health. Depreciation expense for First Health,
primarily for camputer equipment and software, was $36.8 million and amortization of intangitles associated with the acquisition of First Health
was $27.7 milkion.

Interest expense increased as a result of the indebtedness incurred with the acquisition of First Health. Additionally, we refinanced our credit
facilities during the second quarter. As a result, we wrote off $5.4 millien of deferred financing costs related to the original credit facilities.

Other income increased as a result of a larger investment portfolio and a rise in short term rates during the year.
Our provision for income taxes increased primarily dug to an increase in earnings. The effective tax rate increased to 37.3% in 2005 from 36.0% in

2004 primarily as a result of the First Health acquisition and a related change in the reiative mix of states with income tax provisions.

Medicare Private Fee For Service

Coventry submitted bids as a Medicare Private Fee For Service {"PFFS”) sponsor in 2006 for the 2007 benafit year. The bids are designed to provide
solutions for individuals and employer group populations. Qur primary distribution strategy for the Medicare PFFS pragram is through marketing
alliances with ather insurers and brokerage channels.

During the third quarter of 2008, we received approval to offer PFFS products in 43 states. The PFFS plans will be marketed under the brand name
of Advantra Freedom. These plans include options with pharmacy benefits or stand alone medical berefits. In addition, there are benefit plans
available at a zere premium gption in most states.

Products will be underwritten by Coventry Health and Life Insurance Cempany, First Health Life and Health Insurance Company and Cambridge Life
Insurance Company. We have established partnerships with Medicare Supplement insurance carriers and brokerage channels nationwide to provide
Medicare Private Fee For Service to Medicare beneficiaries.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

The nature of a vast majority of our operations is such that cash receipts from premium revenues are typically received up to two months prior to the
expected cash payment for related medical costs. Premium revenues are typically received at the beginning of the manth in which they are sarnad,
and the corresponding incurred medical expenses are paid in a future time period, typically 19 to 50 days after the date such medical services are
rendered. The lag between premium receipts and claims payments creates positive cash flow and overall cash growth. As a resuit, we typically hold
approximately two months of “float™. In addition, accumulated earnings provide further positive cash flow. In addition to ample current liquidity, our
long-term investment portfolio is available for further liquidity needs.

Qur investment guidelines require our fixed income securities to be investment grade in order to provide liquidity to meet future payment obligations
and minimize the risk to the principal. The fixed income portfolio includes government and corporate securities with an average quality rating of
“AA+" and an average cantractual duration of 2.8 years as of December 31, 2006. Typically, the amount and duration of our short-term assets are more
than sutficient to pay for our short-term liabilities and we do not anticipate that sales of our long-term investment portfolio will be necessary to fund
our claims liabilities.

COur cash and investments, consisting of cash and cash equivalents and short-term and long-term investments, but excluding depasits of $56.4 million
restricted under state regulations, increased $723.9 million to $2.7 billian at December 31, 2006 from $2.0 billion at December 31, 2005.

On February 8, 2007, the Company announced it has signed a definitive agreement to acquire Concentra, Ing.'s workers’ compensation managed care
services businesses. The Company will acquire the Concentra businesses for $387.5 million in an all-cash transaction expected to close in 90 to 180
days, subject to closing conditions, regulatory and other customary approvals. We anticipate the funds for payment of the acquisition will be provided
by existing cash, additional bank borrowings or a new bond offering.

On February 15, 2007, we redeemed all $170.5 million of our outstanding 8.125% Senior Notes.. We redeemed the Senior Notes at a redemption
price equal to 104.1% of the principal amount plus interest accrued on the redemption date. We will record a charge, including the write-off of
previously paid unamortized issuance costs, of approximately $9.1 million before tax, or $0.04 per diluted share in the first quarter of 2007. The
funds for payment of the redemption price were provided by existing cash..

The demand for our products and services is subject to many economic fluctuations, risks and uncertainties that could materially affect the way we
do business. See Part |, Item 1A, "Risk Factors,” in this Form 10-K for more infarmaticn. Management believes that the combination of our ability
10 generate cash flows from operations, cash and investments on hand and the excess funds held in certain of our regulated subsidiaries will be
sufficient to fund continuing operations, capital expenditures, debt interest costs, debt principal repayments and any other reasonably likely future
cash requirements.

Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities is primarily driven by net earnings and an increase in medical liabilities. The increase in medical liabilities was
driven by the additicn of approximately $363.5 million related to the Part D program. Total cash inflows from Medicare Part [ totaled $348.6 million.
This amount included a net receipi of claim reinsurance subsidies from CMS of approximately $234.7 million. Following the final settlement in 2007
related to the 2006 plan year, any remaining balancas from reinsurance and other subsidy payments will be returned to CMS. Accounts payable and
other liabilities increased primarily due to CMS risk sharing payment accruals, attributable largely to the Part D program; an increase in income taxes
payable; and other normal operating activities. Accounts receivable decreased during the year as & result of strong collections. Offsetting these
operating cash inflows was an increase in other receivables which was primarily a result of pharmacy rebate receivables recorded related to the
Part D program.

Financing and Investing Activities

Proceeds from the issvance of debt inciude indebtedness incurred in 2005 related to the acquisition of First Health, less payments made for debt
issuance costs. The issuance of debt includes $500 millicn of new senior nates, unsecured credit facilities consisting of a $300 million five-year term
loan and $65 million from a revolving credit facility drawn at closing on January 28, 2005. Proceeds also include new credit facilities the Company
entered into on June 30, 2005 providing for a revolving credit facility in the principal amount of $350 miliion, of which $117.5 million was drawn at
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closing, and a term iean in the principal amount of $100 million. Payments for retirement of debt include the repayment of a $200 million long-term
credit facility assumed from the acquisition of First Heaith, repayment of the $365 million original credit facilities and the $117.5 millicn repayment
of the new revolving credit facility.

The senior notes and credit facilitics require compliance with specified financial ratios and contain certain covenants and restrictions regarding
incurring additional debt, limiting dividends or other restricted payments, and restricting sales of assets above a certain threshold and consolida-
tians or mergers in the context of a change of contral. We have complied with all ratios and covenants under the senior notes and credit facilities.

Capital expenditures in 2006 of approximately $72.6 million consist primarily of computer hardware, software and related costs associated with the
development and implementation of improved operational and communication systems. Projected capital expenditures in 2007 of approximately
$65-$70 million consist primarily of computer hardware, software and other equipment.

Our Board of Directors has approved a program to repurchase our outstanding common stock. Stock repurchases may be made from tima to time at
prevailing prices on the open market, by block purchase or in private transactions. In February 2008, our Board of Directors approved an increase
to the share repurchase program in an amount equal to 5% of cur outstanding common stock, thus increasing our repurchasa authorization by 8.t
million shares. As a part of this program, 3.0 million shares were purchased during the first quarter of 2004 at an aggregate cost of $84.8 million, no
shares were purchased in 2005 and 4.6 million shares of our common stock were purchased in 2006 at an aggregate cost of $256.1 million. As of
December 31, 2008, the total remaining comman shares we are authorized to repurchase under this program is 6.2 million. We intend to repurchase
approximately $200 million of cur shares during the first quarter of 2007 under this program.

Health Plans

Qur regulated HMO and insurance company subsidiaries are required by state regulatory agencies to maintain minimum surplus balances, thereby
limiting the dividends the parent may receive from our regulated entities. During 2006, we received $297 million in dividends from our regulated
subsidiaries.

The Natipnal Association of Insurance Commissioners {"NAIC"] has proposed that states adopt risk-based capital ["RBC”) standards that, if
adopted, would generally require higher minimum capitalization requirements for HMOs and other risk-bearing health care entities. RBC is a methad
of measuring the minimum amaunt of capital appropriate for a managed care organization to support its overall business operations in consideration
of its size and risk profile. The managed care organization’s RBC is calculated by applying factors to various assets, premiums and reserve items. The
factor is higher for those items with greater underlying risk and lower for less risky items. The adequacy of @ managed care organization's actual
capital can then be measured by a comparisan to its RBC as determined by the formuta. Qur health plans are required to submit an RBC report to the
NAIC and their domiciled state's department of insurance with their annual filing.

Regulators will use the RBC results to determine if any regulatory actions are required. Regufatary actions that could take place, if any, range from
filing a financial action plan exptaining how the plan will increase its statutory net worth to the approved levels, to the health plan being placed
under regulatory control.

. The majority of states in which we operate health plans have adopted a risk-based capital {("RBC”) policy that recommends the health plans main-

tain statutory reserves at or above the ‘Company Action Level’ which is currently equal to 200% of their RBC. We have adopted an internal policy
| ta maintain all of our regulated subsidiaries’ statutary capital and surplus at or above 250% of their RBC and a level of 300% in aggregate (referred
to below as "300% of RBC"). Some states in which our requlated subsidiaries operate require deposits to be maintained with the respactive states’
departments of insurance. The table below summarizes our statutory reserve information, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in millions, except
percentage data).

2006 2005
Regulated capita! and surplus $1,020.6@ £897.4
300% of RBC $ 666.5% $565.38
Excess capital and surplus above 300% of RBC $ apaaw $342.1%
Capitat and surpius as percentage of RBC 481%! 485%™
Statutory deposits $ 564 $ 494

Bhnaudited

The increase in capital and surplus for our regulated subsidiaries is a result of net earnings partially offset by dividends paid to the parent company.
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We believe that all substdiaries which incur medical claims maintain more than adequate liquidity and capital resources to meet these short-term
obtigations as a matter of both Company policy and multiple Department of Insurance regulations.

Exctuding funds held by entities subject to regulation and excluding cur investment in an eguipment leasing limited liability company, we had cash
and invastments of approximately $563.1 millian and $347.2 millior at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. The increase was
primarily due to the dividends received fram our reguiated subsidiaries and earnings from our non-regulated First Health business offset, in part, by
the share repurchases discussed previously.

Other
As of December 31, 2008, we were contractually obligated to make the following payments within the next five years and thereafter {in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5Years 5years
Senior notes $ 670,500 $ — 5 - $ — $670,500
Interest payable cn senior notes 287129 43,853 87,706 87,706 67,864
Credit Facilities 90,000 10,000 20,000 60,000 —
Interest pavable on credit facilities 13,670 4517 7533 1,620 —
Software purchases 9,000 3.000 1,000 5,000 —
Operating leases 125,407 26,993 47531 30,579 20,302
Total contractual obligations 1,195,706 88,383 163,772 184,905 758,666
Less sublease income (8.129) {1.718) 12.831) {2,146} (1,436}
Net contractuzl obligations $1.187.577 $86.,647 $160,941 $182,759 $757,230

Refer to Note J to our consolidated financial statements for disclosure related to our operating leases.

We have typically paid 90% te 95% of medical claims within 6 months of the date incurred and approximately 99% of medical claims within 9 months
of the date incurred. Accordingly, we believe medical claims liabilities are short-term in nature and therefore do not meet the listed critesia for clas-
sification as contractual obligations and have been excluded from the table above.

Other Disclosure

Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, we have been named as a defendant in various legal actions such as actions seeking payments for claims denied
by us, medical malpractice actions, employment related claims and other various claims seeking monetary damages. The claims are in various stages
of proceedings and some may ultimately be trought to trial. Incidents occurring through December 31, 2006 may result in the assertion of additional
claims. We maintain general liability, professional liahility and employment practices liability insurances in amounts that we believe are appropriate,
with varying deductibles for which we maintain reserves. The professional liability and employment practices liability insurances are carried through
our captive subsidiary. Although the results of pending litigation are always uncertain, we do not believe the results of such actions currently threatened
or pending, including those described below, will individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position
or results of operations. ’

We are a defendant in the provider track of the In Re: Managed Care Litigation filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
Florida, Miami Division, Multi-District Litigation {"MDL"), No. 1334, in the action captioned, Charles B. Shane., et al., vs. Humana, Inc., et al. This
lawsuit was filed by a group of physicians as a class action against Coventry and nine other companies in the managed care industry. The plaintiffs
alleged violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act {"RICO"), conspiracy to vialate RICO and aiding and abetting a scheme to
violate RICO. In addition to these federal law claims, the complaint included state law claims for breach of contract, violations of various state prompt
payment laws and equitable claims for unjust enrichment and quantum meruit. The trial court dismissed several of the state Jaw claims and ordered
all physicians who had an arbitration provision in their provider contracts to submit their direct RICO claims and their remaining state law claims to
arbitration. As a consequence of this ruling, the plaintiffs who had arbitration provisions voluntarily dismissed their claims that were subject
to arbitration. In its arder, the trial court also held that the plaintiffs” claims of (1) conspiracy to violate RICO and (2) aiding and abetting violations of
RICO were not subject to arbitration. The trial court then certified various subclasses of plaintiffs with respect to these two federal law claims.




COVENTRY HEALTH CARE jf 29

Seven defendants have entered into settlement agreements with the plaintiffs, which have received final approval from the trial court. On June 16,
2006, the trial court filed an order in the Shane lawsuit which granted summary judgment on all claims in favar of Coveniry. The trial court also
granted summary judgment gn all claims in favor of two other defendants. The plaintiffs have appealed the trial court’s summary judgment order 10
the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals. The Shane (awsuit has triggered the filing of copycat class action complaints by other health care providers
such as chiropractors, podiatrists, acupuncturists and other licensed health care professionals. Each of these actions has been transferred to the
MDL and have been designated as "tag-along” actions. The court has entered an order which stays all proceedings in the tag-along actions until alt
pre-trial proceedings in the Shane action have been concluded. Atthough we can not predict the outcome, we beligve that the Shane and the tag-along
actions will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or aur results of operations. Management also believes that the claims asserted
in these lawsuits are without merit and the Company intends to defend its position.

Legislation and Regulation

As a managed health care company, we are subject to extensive government regulation of our products and services. The laws and regulations
affecting our industry generally give state and federal regulatory authorities broad discretion in their exercise of supervisary, regulatory and admin-
istrative powers. These laws and regulations are intended primarily for the benefit of the members of the health pfans. Managed care laws and
regulations vary significantly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and changes are frequently considered and implemented. Likewise, interpretations of
these laws and regulations are also subject to change.

Although the provisions of any legislation adopted at the state or federal level can not be accurately predicted at this time, management believes
that the ultimate outcome of currently proposed legislation should not have a material adverse effect on the results of our operations in the short-term,
Nevertheless, it is possible that future legislation or regulation could have a significant effect on our operations.

Inflation

In recent years, health care cost inflation has exceeded the general inftation rate. Te reduce the effect of health care cost inflation on our business
operations we have, where possible, increased premium rates and implemented cost control measures in our patient care management and provider
contracting. We can not be certain that we will be able ta increase future premium rates at a rate that equals or exceeds the health care cast inflation
rate or that our other cost control measures will be effective.

2007 Outlook

In 2007, we are expecting our total Health Plan commercial risk membership to ultimately remain approximately flat with 2006 year-end results. We
expect Health Plan non-risk membership to be up 5% to 6% compared to 2006 year-end membership. We expect Medicare Advantage (excluding
PFFS) membership to grow in the range of 5% to 10% during 2007, and expect Health Plan Medicaid membership to be up over 10% for the year,
the majority of which resulting from the acquisition of appraximately 31,000 members in our Missouri market in February 2007. In the aggregate,
we gxpect total Health Plan membership to be flat to slightly down in @1 2007, including the impact of the Medicaid acquisition.

For 2007, we wall offer a new Medicare Advantage PFFS plan in 43 states. Through the combined efforts of our various distribution channets, we
expect to generate between 90,000 to 100,000 new PFFS members during 2007 with associated revenue of approximately $700 million.

Risk Factors

The risks described belaw are not the only ones that we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may
afso impair our business operations.

Qur business, financtal condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. Further, the trading price of
our common steck could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected if we are unable to accurately estimate and control future health care costs.

Mast of the premium revenue we receive is based upon rates set months before we deliver services. As a result, our results of operations largely
depend on our ability to accurately estimate and control future health care costs. We base the premiums we charge, at least in part, on our estimate
of expected health care costs over the applicable premium period. Factors that may cause health care costs to exceed our estimates include:

* an increase in the cost of health care services and supplies, including pharmaceuticals;
* higher than expected utilization of health care services;
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» periodic renegotiations of hospital, physician and ather provider contracts;

» the occurrence of epidemics and catastrophic events;

« changes in the demographics of our members and medical trends affecting them;
» general inflation or economic downturns;

* new mandated benefits or ather fequlatory changes that increase our costs; and
» other unforeseen occurrences.

In additien, medical liabilities in our financial statements include our estimated reserves for incurred but not reported and reperted but not paid
claims. The estimates for medical iabilities are made on an accrual basis. We believe that our reserves for medical liabilities are adequate, but we
can not assure you of this. Any adjusiments to our medical liabilities could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our results of operations will be adversely affected if we are unable to increase premiums 1o offset increases in our health care costs.

Our results of operations depend on our ability to increase premiums to offset increases in our health care costs. Although we attempt to base the
premiums we charge on our estimate of future health care costs, we may not be able to control the premiums we charge as a result of competition,
government regulations and other factors. Qur results of operations could be adversely affected if we are unable to set premium rates at appropriate
levels or adjust premium rates in the event our health care costs increase.

A reduction in the number of members in our health plans could adversely affect our results of operations.

A reduction in the numbar of members in aur health plans could adversely affect our results of operations. Factors that could contribute to the loss
of membership include;

¢ competition in premium or plan benefits from other health care benefit companies;

« reductions in the number of employers offering health care coverage;

* reductions in work force by existing customers;

* qur increases in premiums or benefit changes;

* our exit from a market or the termination of a health plan;

* negative publicity and news coverage relating to our company of the managed health care industry generally; and
« catastrophic events, including natural disasters and man-made catastrophes, and other unforeseen occurrences.

Our growth strategy s dependent in part upon our ability to acquire additional managed care businesses and successfully integrate those businesses
into our operations.

Part of our grewth strategy is to grow through the acquisition of additional health plans and other managed care businesses. Historically, we have
significantly increased our revenues through a number of acquisitions. We can not assure you that we will be able to continue to locate suitable
acquisition candidates. successfully integrate the businesses we acquire and realize anticipated cperaticnal improvements and cost savings. The
businesses we acquire also may not achieve our anticipated levels of profitability. Our future growih rate will be adversely affected if we are not
able to successfully complete acquisitions.

Competition may fimit our ability to attract new members or (o increase or maintain our premium rates, which would adversely affect our results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive environment that may affect our ability to attract new members and increase premium rates. We compete with
other health plans for members, We believe the principal factors influencing the choice among health care options are:

e price of henefits offered and cost and risk of alternatives such as self-insurance;
 location and choice of health care providers:
= quality of customer service;
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« comprehensivenass of coverage offered;
* reputation for quality care;

» financial stability of the plan; and

* diversity of product offerings.

We compete with other managed care companies that may have broader geographical coverage, more established reputations in our markets,
greater market share, larger contracting scale, lower costs and/or greater financial and other resources. We also may face increased rate competition
from certain Blue Cross plan competitors that might be required by state requlation to reduce capital surpluses that may be deemed excessive.

Competition in the multi-site, hational account business may limit our ability to grow reverues which could adversely affect our results of operations.

First Health competes in a highly competitive environment against other major national managed care companies in its national account customers
to provide adminisirative, network access, and medical management services to large, multi-site, self-insured employers. Among these competitors
are Aetna, United Healthcare and "Blue Card” {a joint venture of major Blue Cross plans), all of which have greater resources, brand identity and
provider contracting scale compared to First Health or Coventry.

We depend on the services of non-exclusive indapendent agents and brokers to market our products to employers, and we can not assure you that they
will continug to market our products in the future.

We depend on the services of independent agents and brokers to market our managed care products and services, particularly to small employer
group members. We do not have long term contracts with independent agents and brokers, who typically are not dedicated exclusively to us and
frequently market the health care products of our competitors. We face intense competition for the services and allegiance of independent agents
and brokers, and we can not assure you that agents and brokers will continue to market our products in a fair and consistent sanner.

Our failure to obtain cost-effective agresments with a sufficient number of providers may result in higher medical costs and a decrease in our membership.

Qur future results largely depend on our ability to enter into cost-effective agreements with hospitals, physicians and other health care providers.
The terms of thase provider contracts will have a material effect on our medical costs and our ability to control these costs. In addition, our ability
to contract successtully with a sufficiently {arge number of providers in a particular geographic market will impact the refative attractiveness of our
managed care products in those markets, and our ability to contract at competitive rates with our PPO and workers' compensation related providers
will affect the attractiveness and profitability of our products in the national account, network rental and workers' compensation businessgs.

In some of our markets, there are large provider systems that have a major presence. Some of these large provider systems have operated their own
health plans in the past or may choose ta do so in the future. These provider systems could adversely affect our product offerings and results of
operations if they refuse to contract with us, place us at a competitive disadvantage or use their market positien to negotiate contracts that are less
favorable to us. Provider agreements are subject to periodic renewal and renegotiations. We can not assure you that these large providar systems
will continue to contract with us or that they will contract with us on terms that are favarable o us.

We may incur significant expenses in connection with implementing our new Medicare Advanlage Private Fee-For-Service (FFFS) plan, which may have
an adverse effect on our near-term operating results.

We received approval from CMS to offer PFFS plans. We have begun to incur expenses to upgrade and imprave our infrastructure, technclogy, and
systems to manage our PFFS product. We incurred significant expenses in 2006 as we prepared to provide these PFFS benefits as of January 1,
2007, and will in the future incur additional expenses. In particular, our expenses incurred in connection with the implementation of our PFFS ben-
efits related to the following:

= hiring and training of personnel to establish and manage systems, aperations, regulatory relationships, and materials;
s systems development and upgrade casts, including hardware, software and development resources;

+ marketing and sales;

+ gnrolling new members;

« developing and distributing member materials such as 1D cards and member handbooks, and

handling sales inquiry and customer service calls.

[ ]
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Negative publicity regarding the managed health care industry generally or our Company in particular could adversely affact our results of operations
or business.

Over the last several years, the managed health care industry has been subject to negative publicity. Negative publicity regarding the managed
health care industry generally or our company in particular may result in increased regulation and legislative review of industry practices further
increase our costs of doing business and adversely affect our results ¢f operations by:

* requiring us to change our products and services;
= increasing the regulatory burdens under which we operate; or
* adversely affecting our ability to market our products or services.

Negative publicity relating ta our company or the managed care industry generally also may adversely affect our ability to attract and retain members.
A failure of our information technology systems could adversely affect our businiess.

We depend on cur information technology systems for timely and accurate information. Failure te maintain effective and efficient information
technoiogy systems or disruptions in our infarmaticn technology systems could cause disruptions in our business operations, loss of existing cus-
tomers, difficulty in attracting new customers, disputes with customers and providers, ragulatory problems, increases in administrative expenses
and other adverse consequences.

We conduct business in a heavily requlated industry and changes in laws or regulations or allaged violations of regulations could adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

Our business is heavily regulated by federal, state and local authorities. Legislation or other regulatory reform that increases the regulatory require-
ments imposed on us or that changes the way we currently do business may in the future adversely affect our business and results of operations.
tegislative or regulatory changes that could significantly harm us and our subsidiaries include changes that:

+ impose increased liability for adverse conseguences of medical decisions;

* limit premium evels;

* increase minimum capital, reserves and other financial viability requirements;

¢ impose fines or other penaliies for the failure to pay claims promptly;

* impase fines or other penalties as a result of market conduct reviews;

» prohibit or limit rental access to health care provider networks;

* orohibit or limit provider financial incentives and provider risk-sharing arrangements;

= require health plans to offer expanded or new benefits;

* limit ability of health plans to manage care and utilization due to “any willing provider” and direct access laws that restrict or prohibit product
features that encourage members to seek services from contracted providers or through referral by a primary care provider;

* limit contractual terms with providers, including audit, payment and termination provisions;

¢ implement mandatory third party review processes for coverage denials; and

* impese additional health care information privacy or security requirements.

We also may be subject to governmental investigations or inguiries from time te time. For example in 2004, several companies in the insurance
industry have received subpeenas for infermaticn from the New York Attorney General and the Connecticut Attorney General with respect to an
industry wide investigation into certain insurance brokerage practices, including broker compensation arrangements, bid quoting practices and
potential antitrust violations. Insurance regulators in several states, including states in which our subsidiaries are domiciled, have sent letters of
inquiry concerning similar mattars to the companies subject to their jurisdiction, including our subsidiaries. We have furnished the information
requested and have received no further inquiry or comment from the insurance regulatory authorities. The existence of such investigations in our
industry could negatively impact the market value of all comganies in our industry including our stock price. Any similar governmental investigations
of Coventry could have 2 material adverse effect on our financial condition, resu'ts of operaticns or business or result in significant liabilities to the
Company, as well as adverse publicity.
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In addition, we are reguired to obtain and maintain various regulatory appravals to market many of our products. Delays in obtaining or failure to
obtain or maintain these approvals could adversely impact our results of operations. Feceral, state and local autharities frequently cansider changes
to laws and regulations that could adversely affect our business. We can not predict the changes that government autharities will approve in the
future or assure you that those changes will not have an adverse effect on our business or results of operations.

We face periodic reviews, audits and investigations under our contracts with federal and state government agencies, and these audits could have
adverse findings that may negatively affect our business.

We contract with various federal and state governmental agencies to provide managed health care services. Pursuant to these contracts, we are
sultject to various governmental reviews, audits and investigations to verify our compliance with the contracts and applicable laws and requlations.
Any adverse review, audit or investigation could result in:

refunding of amaunts we have been paid pursuant ta our government contracts;

imposition of fines, penalties and other sanctions on us;

» joss of our right to participate in various federal programs:

+ damage to our reputation in various markets;

« increased difficulty in selling our products and services; and

« |oss of one or more of aur ligenses to act as an insurer or HMO or to otherwise provide a service.

We may be adversely affected by changes in government funding for Medicare and Medicaid.

The federal government and many states from time to time consider altering the level of funding for government healthcare programs, including
Medicare and Medicaid. The Deficit Reduction Act of 2008, signed inte law on February 8, 2008, included Medicaid cuts of approximately $48
billion over 5 years. In addition, proposed regulatary changes would, if implemented, further reduce federal Medicaid funding. We cannot predict
future Medicare or Medicaid funding levels or ensure that changes to Medicare or Medicaid funding will not have an adverse effect on our business
or results of operations.

We are subject to litigation in the ordinary course of our business, including litigation based on new or evolving legal theories that could adversely
affect our rasults of operations.

Due to the nature of our business, we are subject to a variety of legal actions relating to our business operations including claims relating to:

« gur denial of non-covered benefits;

» vicarious liability for medical malpractice claims filed against our providers;

* disputes with our providers alleging RICO and antitsust violations;

e disputes with our providers over reimbursement and termination of provider contracts;

» disputes related to our non-risk business, including actions alleging breach of fiduciary duties, claim administration errors and failure ta disclose
netwaork rate discounts and other fee and rebate arrangements;

« disputes over our co-payment calculations;

« customer audits of our compliance with our plan obligations; and

= disputes over payments for out-of-netwark benefits.

In addition, plaintiffs continue to bring new types of legal claims against managed care companies. Recent court decisions and legisiative activity
inczease our exposure to these types of claims. In some cases, plaintiffs may seek class action status and substantial econgmic, nan-ecenomic or
punitive damages. The loss of even one of these claims, if it resulied in a significant damage award, could have an adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations. In the event a plaintiff was to obtain a significant damage award it may make reasanable settlements of claims
more difficult to obtain. We can not determine with any certainty what new theories of recovery may evolve or what their impact may be on the
managed care industry in general o on us in particular.

We have, and expect to maintain, liability insurance coverage for some of the patential legal liabilities we may ingur. Currently, professional liability
and employment practices liability insurance is covered through our captive subsidiary. Potential liabilities that we incur may not, however, be
covered by insurance, our insurers may dispute coverage or may be unable to meet their obligations or the amount of our insurance coverage may
be inadequate. We can not assure you that we will be able to obtain insurance coverage in the future, or that insurance will continue to be available
an a cost effective basis, if at all.
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Our stock price and trading valume may be volatife.

From time ta time, the price and trading volume of our common stock, as well as the stock of other companies in the health care industry, may
experience periods aof significant volatility, Company-specific issues and developments generally in the health care industry {including the regulatory
environment} and the capital markets may cause this volatility. Qur stock price and trading volume may fluttuate in response 1o 3 number of events
and factors, including:

+ variations in our operating results;

* thanges in the market's expectations about our future pperating results;

changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts concerning our company or the hezlth care industry generally;
operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors may deem comparable;

news reports relating to trends in our markets;

changes in the laws and requlations affecting our business;

acquisitions and financings by us or others in our industry; and

sales of substantial amounts of our common stock by our directors and executive officers or principal stockholders, or the perception that such
sales could occur.

Our indebtedness imposes restrictions on our business and pperations.

The indentures for our seniar notas and bank credit agreament impose rastrictions an aur business and operations. These restrictions limit qur ability
to, among other things:

« incur additional debt;

» pay dividends or make other restricted payments,

create or permit certain liens on our assets;

* sell assets;

* create or permit restrictions on the ability of certain of our restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions to us;
= gnier into transactions with affiliates;

s enter into sale and leaseback transactions; and

* consolidate or merge with or into other companies or sell all or substantially all of our assets.

Cur ability to generate sufficient cash to service our indebtedness will depend on numerous factors beyond our controf.

Our ability to service our indebtedness will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. Our ability to generate the cash necessary to service
our indebtedness is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, requlatory and other factars that are beyend our control. We can
not assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be available in an amount sufficient
to enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund other liquidity needs. in addition, we will be more vulnerable to economic downturns, adverse
industry conditions and competitive pressures as a resuft of our significant indebtedness. We may need to refinance all or a portion of our indebted-
ness before maturity. We can not assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our indebtednass or that we will be able to refinance our
indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms.

A substantial amount of our cash flow is generated by our regulated subsidiaries.

Our regulated subsidiaries conduct a substantial amount of our consolidated operations. Consequently, our cash flow and our ability to pay our debt
and fund future acquisitions depends, in part, an the amount of cash that the parent company receives from our regulated subsidiaries. Qur subsid-
iaries” ability to make any payments 1o the parent company will depend on their earnings, business and tax considerations, legal and regulatory
restrictions and economic conditions. Our requlated subsidiaries are subject to HMO and insurance regulations that require them to meet or exceed
various capital standards and may restrict their ability to pay dividends or make cash transfers to the parent campany. If our regulated subsidiaries
are restricted from paying the parent company dividends or otherwise making cash transfers to the parent company, it could have material adverse
effect on the parent company’s cash flow. For additional information regarding our segulated subsidiaries’ statutory capital sequitements, see Part i,
Item 7 "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Statutory
Capital Requirements.”
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Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law could defay, discourage or prevent a change in control of our Company that our stockholders
may consider favorable.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may delay, discourage or prevent a mesger, acquisition or change in
cantrol involving our company that our stockholders may consider favorable. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it
mare difficult for stockholders to elect directors and take oiher corporate actions. Ameng other things, these provisions:

 provide for a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms so that no more than one-third of our directors can be replaced at any
annual meeting;

+ provide that directors may be removed without cause only by the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of our outstanding shares;

 provide that amendment or repeal of the provisions of our certificate of incorporation establishing our classified board of directors must be
approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of three-fourths of our outstanding shares; and

* establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted on by
stockholders at a meeting.

These provisions of our certificate of incarporation and bylaws and Delaware law may discourage transactions that otherwise could provide for the
payment of a premium over prevailing market prices for our common stock and also could limit the price that investors are willing to pay in the future
for shares of our common stock.

Changes in general economic conditions could adversely affect our busingss and results of aperations.

Changes in economic conditions could adversely affect our business and results of operations. The state of the economy could adversely affect our
employer group renewal prospects and our ability to collect or increase premiums. The state of the economy could also adversely affect the staies’
budgets. which could result in the states attempting to reduce payments to Medicaid plans in those states in which we offer Medicaid plans, and
increase taxes and assessments on our activities. Although we could attempt to mitigate or cover our exposure fram such increased costs through,
among other things, increases in premiums, there can be no assurance that we will be able to mitigate or cover all of such costs resulting from any
budget cuts in states in which we operate. Although we have attempied to diversify our product offerings to address the changing needs of our
membership, the effects of economic conditions could cause our existing membership to seek health coverage alternatives that we do not offer or
could result in significant membership loss, lower average premium yietds or decreased margins on continuing membership.

Our efforts to capitalize on Medicare business opportunities could prove to be unsuccessitul,

Medicare programs represent a significant portion of our business, accounting for approximately 13.2% of our total revenue in 2006 and is expected
to exceed 26.0% in 2007. In connection with the passage of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the
“Drug Act”} and the Drug Act’s implementing regulations adopted in 2005, we have significantly expanded our Medicare health plans, restructured
our Medicare program management team and operations to enhance our ability to pursue business opportunities presented by the Drug Act and the
Medicare program generally,

Particular risks associated with our providing Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits under the Drug Act include potential uncollectibility of
receivables, inadequacy of underwriting assumptions, inability to receive and process information and increased pharmaceutical costs {as well as
the underlying seasonality of this business).

In 2007, we expect that our Medicare programs will expand, Specifically, we will be introducing PFFS Medicare Advantage plans, expanding our
Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits plans to all states, and enhancing our HMO/PPO produci offerings. All of these growth activities require
substantial administrative and operational capabilities which we are in the process of developing, If the transitian and implementation of these key
operational functions does not occur as scheduled, or we are unable to develop administrative capabilities to address the additional needs of our
growing Medicare programs, it could have a material adverse effect on our Medicare business and operating results.

In addition, if the cost or complexity of the recent Medicare changes exceed our expectations or prevent effective program implementation, if the
government alters or reduces funding of Medicare programs, if we fail to design and maintain programs that are attractive to Medicare participants
or if we are not successful in winning contract renewals or new coniracts under the Drug Act’s competitive bidding process, our current Medicare
business and our ability to expand our Medicare operations could be materially and adversely affected, and we may not be able to realize any return
on our investments in Medicare initiatives.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Under an investment policy approved by our Board of Directors, we invest primarily in marketable U.S. government and agency, state, municipal,
mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities and corporate debt obligations that are investment grade. Prior to the acquisition of First Health, our
Investmeni Palicy and Guidelines did not permit equity-type investments or fixed income securities that are below investment grade. As described
in the notes to the financial statements, we acquired investments in an equipment leasing limited liability company through our acquisition of First
Health. The Board approved modifications to our investment guidelines by adopting a permitted exception to allow for such investments if, in our
best interest, such investments were not disposed within 90 days after acquisition. We determined it would not be in our best interest to liquidate
this investment and therefore the investment in the equipment leasing limited liability company was approved as a permitted exception. We have
classified all of our investments as availahle-for-sale. We are exposed to certain market risks ieluding interest raie risk and credit risk.

We have established policies and procedures to manage our exposure to changes in the fair value of our investments. Our policies include an empha-
sis on credit quality and the management of our portfolio’s duration and mix of securities. We believe our investment portfolio is diversified and
currently expect no material loss to result from the failure to perform by the issuers of the debt securities we hold. The mortgage-backed securities
are insured by several associations, including Government National Mortgage Administration, Federal National Mortgage Administration and the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corparation.

We invest primarily in fixed income securities and classify all our investments as available-for-sale. Investments are evaluated on an individual
security basis at least quarterly to determine if declines in value are other-than-temporary. In making that determination, we consider all available
evidence relating to the realizable value of a security. This evidence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

 adverse financial canditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or other variables;

* the length of the time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost;

+ the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;

» our intent and ability to retain our investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value;
» climination or reduction in dividend payments, or scheduled interest and principal;

* rating agency downgrade of a debt security; and

» expected cash flows of a debt security.

Temporary declines in value of investments classified as available-for-sale are netted with unrealized gains and reported as a net amount in a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. A decline in fair value below amortized cost that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted for as a realized
loss and the write down is included in earnings. Realized gains and losses on the saie of investments are determined on a specific identification
basis. The current unrealized loss is almost exclusively the rasult of interest rate increases and not unfavorable changes in the credit ratings associated
with these securities. These investments are not in high risk industries or sectors and we intend to hold these investments for a period of time
sufficient to allow for a recovery in market value, which may be maturity. See Note E to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
more information concerning other-than-temporary impaired investments.
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Our investments at December 31, 2006 mature according to their contractual terms, as follows, in thousands {actual maturities may differ because
of call or prepayment rights}):

Amartized Fair
As of December 31, 2006 Cost Value
Maturities:
Within 1 year $ 369983 $ 369,455
110 5 years 380,325 377.01
510 10 years 262,409 262,573
Qver 1G years 361,737 359,847
Total $1,374,454 1,368,886
Equity investment 84,078
Total short-term and long-term securities $1,422,964

QOur projectians of hypothetical net gains in fair value of our market rate sensitive instruments, should potential changes in market rates occur, are
presented below. The prajection is based on a model, which incorporates effective duration, convexity and price to forecast hypothetical instanta-
neous changes in interest rates of pasitive and negative 100, 200 and 300 basis points. The model anly takes into account the fixed income securities
in the portfolio and excludes all cash. While we believe that the potential market rate change is reasanably possible, actual results may differ.

Increase {Decrease) in Fair Value of Portiolio
{trr thousanes) Given an Interest Rate {Decrease) Increase of X Basis Points as of December 31, 2006

(300} (200) (100} 100 200 300
$101,456 $66,067 $33.501 $(35,008) $(70,631) $(105,456)
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Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Coventry Health Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Coveniry Healih Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockhalders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as we!l as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consclidated financial position of Coventry
Health Care, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2005, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
Coventry Health Care, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on citeria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion therson.

As discussed in Note F to the consolidated financial siatements, on January 1, 2006, Coventry Health Care, Inc. changed its method of accounting for
stock-based compensatian in accordance with guidance provided in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

Ganet + LLP

EANST & YOUNG LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
February 28, 2007
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Coventry Health Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheets

fin thousands)

December 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,370,836 $ 391646
Short-term investments 292,392 545615
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,906 and $3,583 as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively 209,180 228,028
Other receivables, net 164,829 76.462
Deferred income taxes 59,339 57,666
Other current assets 37.806 26,285
Total current assets 2,134,382 1,325,702
Long-term investments 1,130,572 1,125,632
Property and equipment, net 315,105 351,427
Goodwilt 1,620,272 1,612,390
Other intangible assets, net 388,400 419,352
(Other long-term assets 76,376 60,669
Total assets $5,665,107 $4,895,172
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Medécal liabilities $1.121,1%1 $ 752,774
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 460,489 442,785
Deferred revenue 60,349 64,668
Current portion of long-term debt 10,080 10,000
Total current liabilities 1,651,989 1,270,227
Long-term debt 750,500 760,500
Other long-term liabilities 309,616 309,742
Tatal liabilities 2,112,105 2,340,469
Stockholders” equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 570,000 authgrized
187,630 issued and 159,441 outstanding in 2006
186,253 issued and 162,717 outstanding in 2005 1,876 1.863
| Treasury stock, at cost; 28,189 in 2006; 23,536 in 2005 (563,509} {299,001}
Additiona! paid-in capital 151,101 1,468,176
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {3.519) {3,743
Retained earnings 1,947,453 1,387,408
Total stockholders’ equity 2,953,002 2,554,703
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $5.665,107 $4,895,172

See accompanying notes 10 the consolidated financial statements.
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Coventry Health Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Operations

fin thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Operating revenues:
Managed care premiums $6.857,301 $5,728,162 $5.198,599
Management services 876,455 183,084 113,370
Total operating revenues 1,733,756 6,611,246 5,311,969
Operating expenses:
Medical costs 5,439,964 4,550,811 4,185,895
Selling, general and administrative 1,339,522 1,182,381 611,801
Depreciation and amortization 113,267 86,176 17.602
Total operating expenses 6,892,753 5,819,428 4,815,298
Operating earnings 841,003 791,818 496,671
Interest expense 52,446 58,414 14,301
Other income, net 102,791 66,021 44,621
Earnings before income taxes 896,348 799.425 526,991
Provision for income taxes 336,303 297,786 189,874
Net earnings $ 560,045 § 501,639 $ 337117
Net earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share $ 353 $ 3.18 $ 255
Diluted earnings per share $ iy $ 3.10 b 2.48
Weighted average comman shares outstanding:
Basic 158,601 157,965 132,188
Effect of dilutive options and restricted stock 2,833 3.751 3,696
Diluted 161,434 161,716 135,884

See accompanying nctes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Coventry Health Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{in thousands)}
Other
Comprehensive
Treasury  Additional Income Total
Common  Stock, at Paid-In Accumulated Retained  Stockholders’
Stock Cost Capital {Loss) Earnings Equity
Balance, December 31, 2003 $1572  $(204,274] § 565,210 $17838 § 548652 $ 928,998
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 337.117 337,117
Other comprehensive income:
Holding ioss, net (15.424)
Reclassification adjustment (476)
{16,000)
Deferred tax effect 6,164 6,164
Comprehensive income 327,281
Employee stock plans activity 20 10,062 42,507 52,989
Treasury shares acquired {96,842) {96.,842)
Balance, December 31, 2004 1,582 (291,054} 608,117 8,002 885,769 1,212,426
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 501,639 501,639
Other comprehensive income:
Holding loss, net {17,413)
Reclassification adjustment (2,019)
(18,432}
Deferred tax effect 7.687 1687
Comprehensive income 489 894
Issuance of stock related to First Health acquisition 247 783,943 784,190
Employee stock plans activity 24 9094 76,116 85,234
Treasury shares acquired {17.041) (17,041}
Balance, December 31, 2005 1,863 {299,001} 1,468,176 {3.743) 1,387,408 2,554,703
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 560,045 560,045
Other comprehensive income:
Halding loss, net 61}
Reclassification adjustment 479
368
Deferred tax effect (144) (144)
Comprehensive income 560,269
Employee stock plans activity 13 4,296 102,925 107,234
Treasury shares acquired (269,204) {269,204}
Balance, December 31, 2006 $1.876 §$(563,809) $1,571,101 $ (3519) $1,947,453 $2,953,002

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Coventry Health Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from aperating activities:
Net earnings $ 560,045 $ 901,639 $337.117
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 113,267 86,176 17,602
Amortizatian of stock compensation 55,197 21,992 15,488
Deferred income tax {benefit) provision {14,908) 15,094 {2,319)
Other adjustments am 561 15,032
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of the purchase of subsidiaries:
Accounts receivable ' 21,164 {101) (15,158}
(ther receivables {88,367} 18,450 {1.735)
Medical liabilities 368,377 50,531 63,285
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 63,606 105,101 46,782
Interest payable 455 13919 —
Other changes in assets and liabilities (15,376} {13.943) {22,189)
Net cash from operating activities 1,066,471 804,469 453,905
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures, net (72.573) (71.393) {14.972)
Proceeds from sales of investments 1,098,111 553,711 330,961
Proceeds from maturities of investments 571,506 447,422 290,039
Purchases of investments {1.420,604) {1,273,557) {807,985)
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (35,352} (877,245 (6,852)
Net cash from investing activities 147,048 (1,221,086} (208,809}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stock 23,023 74,162 16,184
Payments for repurchase of stock (269,204} {17,550} {96,975)
Proceeds from issuance of debt, net — 1,066,495 —
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation 21,852 — —
Repayment of long-term debt {10,000) {682,500} —
Net cash from financing activities {234,329) 390,607 {80,791}
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 979,190 {25,990) 164,305
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pericd 391,646 417,636 253.33
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,370,836 § 391646 $417,636
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 29745 $ 36,581 § 13853
Income taxes paid, net $ 290763 $ 221727 $150.311

See accompanying notes to the consalidated financial statements.
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Coventry Health Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006, 2605 and 2004

A. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Coventry Health Care, Inc. {together with its subsidiaries, the “Company™ ar “Coventry”) is a national managed health care company based in
Bethesda, Maryland operating health plans, insurance companies, network rental/managed care services companies, and workers’ compensation
services companies. The Company provides a full range of risk and fee-based managed care products and services, including HMQ, PPQ, POS,
Medicare Advantage, Medicare Prescription Orug Plans, Medicaid, Workers” Compensation and Network Rental to a broad cross section of indi-
viduals, employer and government-funded groups, government agencies, and other insurance carriers and administrators in all 50 states as well as
the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico.

Since the Company began operations in 1987 with the acquisition of the American Service Companies entities, including Coventry Health and Life
Insurance Company {“CH&L"), the Company has grown substantially through acquisitions. See Note B to these consolidated financial statements for
information on the Company’s most recent acquisitions.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States and include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are 100% owned. All significant inter-company transactions
have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting pringiples generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those amounts.

Reclassifications—Certain 2005 and 2004 amounis have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 preseniation.

Significant Customers—The Company’s commercial busingss is diversified across a large customer base and there are no commercial groups that
make up 10% or more of Coventry's managed care premiums, The Company received 21.6%, 11.8% and 10.9% of its managed care premiums for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectively, from the federal Medicare program throughout its various markets. The Company
also received 11.1%, 13.2% and 11.7% of its managed care premiums for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, from its
state-sponsored Medicaid programs throughout its various markets. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the State of Missouri
accounted for almost half the Company's Medicaid premiums. The Company received 19.3% and 22.1% of its management services revenye from a
single customer, Mail Handlers Benefit Plan, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company’s contract with the Mail
Handlers Benefit Plan is up for renewal on December 31, 2007.

Cash and Cash Equivalents— Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of money market funds, commercial paper and certificates of deposit.
The Campany considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of three manths or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value,

Investments—The Company accounts for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS") No. 115—
“"Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and in accordance with FASB Staff Position Number FAS 115-1, “The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” The Company invests primarily in fixed income securities and classifies
all of its investments as available-for-sale. Investments are evaluated on an individual security basis at least quarterly to determine if declines in value
are other-than-temporary. In making that determination, the Company considers all available evidence relating to the realizable value of a security.
This evidence is reviewed at the individual security level and includes, but is not limited to, the following:

* adverse financial conditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or other variables;
¢ the length of the time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost;
* the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;
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e the Company’s intent and ability 1o retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value;
 elimination or reduction in dividend payments, or scheduled interest and principal;

* rating agency downgrade of a debt security; and

* expected cash flows of a debt security.

Temporary declines in value of investments classified as available-for-sale are netted with unrealized gains and reported as a net amount in a separate
component of steckholders’ equity. A decling in fair value below amortized cost that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted for as a realized
loss and the write down is included in earnings. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on a specific identification basis.

Investments with original maturities in excess of three months and less than one year are classified as short-term investments and generally consist
of corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury notes and commercial paper. Long-term investments have original maturities in excess of ane year and primarily
consist of fixed income securities.

Other Receivables—Other receivables include interest receivables, pharmacy rebate receivabies, Office of Personnel Management {“0PM"}
receivables, receivables from providers and suppliers and any other receivables that do not relate to premiums.

Property and Equipment—Property, equipment and leasehold improvements are recarded at cost. In accordance with Statement of Position {"SOP”)
98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Develeped or Obtained for Internal Use, the cost of internally developed software is capitalized
and included in property and equipment. We capitalize costs incurred during the applicaticn development stage for the development of internal-use
software. These costs primarity retate to payroll and payroll-related costs for employees along with costs incurred for external consuftants who are
directly associated with the internal-use software project. Depreciation is computed using the straight-ling method gver the estimated lives of the
related assets or, if shorter, over the terms of the respective leases.

Long-term Assets—Long-term assets primarily include assets associated with the 401{kj Restoration and Deferred Compensatian Plan, senior note
issuance costs and reinsurance recoveries. The reinsurance recoveries were obtained with the acquisition of First Health Group Corp. ("First Health”)
and are related to certain life insurance receivables fram a third party insurer for liabilities that have been ceded to that third party insurer.

Business Combinations, Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangibles—The Company accounts for business combinations, goodwill and
other intangibles in accordance with SFAS No. 141—"Business Combinations,” SFAS No. 142—"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and SFAS
No. 144—"Accounting for the Impairment or Dispesal of Long-Lived Assets.” Acquired intangible assets are separately recognized upon meeting
certain criteria. Such intangible assets include, but are not limited to, trade and service marks, non-compete agreements, customer lists and licenses.
An intangible asset that is subject to amortization shall be tested for recoverabitity whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill and other intangible assets that have indefinite lives are subject to a periedic assessment for
impairment by applying a fair-value-based test. The Company considers multiple approaches to identifying the fair value of its goodwill and other
intangible assets. Those approaches include the market approach, the market capitalization approach, the income approach and the cost approach.
The market approach estimates a business’s fair value by analyzing the recent sales of similar companies. The market capitalization approach is
based on market value of the Company’s total shares outstanding. The income approach is based on the present value of expected future cash
{lows. The cost approach is based an the cost to reconstruct or replace an asset with another of like utility. As impairment charges occur, write-down
charges will be recorded in the period in which the impairment took place. See Note C to consolidated financial statements for disclosure related
to intangible assets.

Medical Liabilities and Expense—Medical liabilities consist of actual claims reported but not paid and estimates of health care services incurred
but not reported. The estimated claims incurred but not reported are based on historical data, current enrollment, health service utilization statistics
and other related information. In determining medical liabilities, the Company employs standard actuarial reserve methods that are specific to each
market’s membership, product characteristics, geographic tesritories and provider network. The Company also considers utilization frequency and
unit costs of inpatient, outpatient, pharmacy and other medical expenses, as well as claim payment backlogs and the timing of provider reimburse-
ments. The Company also establishes reserves, if required, for the probability that anticipated future health care costs and contract maintenance
costs under the group of existing contracts will exceed anticipated future premiums and reinsurance recoveries on those contracts. These accruals
are continually monitored ang reviewed, and as settlements are made or accruals adjusted, differences are reflecied in current operations. Changes
in assumptions for medical costs caused by changes in actual experience could cause these estimates to change in the near term.
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The follawing table shows the components of the change in medical liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectively:

2006 2005 2004

Medical liabilities, beginning of peried $ 152714 $ 660,475 § 597,190
Acquisitions™ — 41,895 —
Reported Medical Costs

Current year 5,570,872 4,672,009 4,257,942

Prior year develapments {130,508} (121,138 {72,047
Total reported medical costs 5,439,954 4,550,871 4,185,895
Claim Payments

Payments for current year 4,852,359 4,030,685 3,691,092

Payments for prior year 54251 469,782 431,518
Totai claim payments 5,394,930 4,500,467 4,122,610
Part D Related Subsidy Liabilities 323343 — —
Medical liahilities, end of period $1.121,151 $ 752,774 § 660475
Supplemental Information:

Prior year development® 2.9% 29% 20%

Current year paid percent’ 87.1% 86.3% 86.7%

M Acquisition balances represent medical liabilities of the acquired compariy as of the applicable acquisition date.
Prior vear reported medical costs in the current year as a percentage of prior year reported medical Costs.
B Current year claim payments as a percentage of current year reported medical costs.

The negative amounts noted as “prior vear” medical costs are favorable adjustments for claim estimates being settlec for amounts less than originally
anticipated. As noted above, these favarable changes from original estimates occur due to changes in medical utilization, mix of provider rates and
other companents of medical cost trends.

The Medicare Part D related subsidy liabilities identified in the table above represent subsidy amounts received from the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services {“CMS") for reinsurance and for cost sharing related ta low income individuals. These subsidies are recorded in medical liabilities
and we do not recognize premium revenue or claims expense for these subsidies. Following the final settlement in 2007 related to the 2006 plan
year, any remaining balances from these subsidy payments will be refunded to CMS.

Other Long-term Liabilities—Other long-term liabilities consist primarily of liabilities associated with the 401(k) Restoration and Deferred
Compensation Plan and the deferred tax liabilities associated with both intangible assets and a limited partnership investment.

Comprehensive Income—Comprehensive income includes net income and the unzealized net gains and losses on investment securities. Other
comprehensive income is net of reclassification adjustments to adjust for items currently included in net income, such as realized gains and losses
on investment securities. The deferred tax benefit for unrealized holding losses arising from investment securities during the years ended December
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0.02 million, $6.9 millien and $5.0 million, respectively. The deferred tax benefit for reclassification adjustments for
loss included in net income on investment securities during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $0.2 million. The deferred tax provision for
reclassification adjustments for gains included in net income on investment securities during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was
$0.8 millian and $0.2 million, respectively.

Revenue Recognition—Managed care premiums are recorded as revenue in the month in which members are entitled to service. Premiums are
based on a per subscriber contract rate and the subscribers in the Company’s records at the time of billing. Premium billings are generally sent to
employers in the month proceeding the month of coverage. Premium billings may be subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in membership as a
result of retroactive terminatians, additions, or ather changes. The Company alsc receives premium payments from {"CMS”) on a monthly basis for its
Medicare membership. Membership and category eligibility are periodically reconciled with CMS and such reconciliations could result in adjustments
to revenue. The Company also receives premium payments on a manthly basis from the state Medicaid programs with which we contract for the
Medicaid members for whom we provide health coverage. Membership and category eligibitity are periodically reconciled with the state Medicaid
programs and such reconciliations could result in adjustments to revenue. Premiums collected in advance are recorded as deferred revenue.
Emplayer contracts are typically on an annual basis, subject to cancellatien by the employer group or by the Company upen 30 days notice.
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The Medicare Part D program, which gives beneficiaries access to prescription drug coverage, took effect January 1, 2006. Coventry has been
awarded contracts by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services {"CMS”) to offer various Medicare Part D plans on a nationwide basis, in
accordance with guidelines put forth by the agency. Payments from CMS under these contracts include amounts for premiums, amounts for risk
corridor adjustments and amounts for reinsurance and low-income cost subsidies.

The Company recognizes premium revenue ratably over the contract period for providing insurance coverage. Regarding the CMS risk carrider provision,
an estimated risk sharing receivable or payable is recognized based on activity-to-date. Activity for CMS risk sharing is accumulated at the contract level
and recorded within the consolidated balance sheet in other receivables or other accrued liabilities depending on the net contract balance at the end
of the reporting period with correspanding adjustments ta premium revenue. Costs for covered prescription drugs are expensed as incurred.

Subsidy amounts received for reinsurance and for cost sharing related to low income individuals are recorded in medical liabilities and will offset
medical costs when paid. We do not recognize premium revenue or claims expense for these subsidies as the Company does not incur any risk with
this part of the program.

A reconciliation of the final risk sharing, low-income subsidy, and reinsurance subsidy amounts is performed following the end of the contract year.
As of December 31, 2008, the CMS risk sharing payahle was $32.6 million and is included in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities and the
CMS risk sharing receivable was $3.8 million and is included in other receivables. As of December 31, 2006, the subsidy amounts payable totaled
$323.3 million and is included in medical liabilities.

The Company has quota share arrangements with two of its Medicare Part D distribution partners. As a result of the quota share sharing arrange-
ments, the Company ceded Medicare Part D premium and medical costs to these partners. The ceded amounts are excluded from the Company's
results of operations.

Management services revenue is generally a fixed administrative fee, pravided on a predetermined contractual basis or on a percentage-of-savings
basis, for access to our health care provider networks and health care management services, for which we do not assume underwriting risk.
Percentage of savings revenue is determined using the difference between charges billed by contracted medical providers and the contracted reim-
bursement rates for the services billed and is recognized based on claims processed. The management services we provide typically include health
care provides network management, clinical management, pharmacy benefit management (“PBM”), bilt review, claims repricing, fiscal agent services
{generally for state entitiement programs), claims processing, utilization review and quality assurance.

The Company enters into performance guarantees with employer groups where it pledges to meet certain standards. These standards vary widely
and could involve customer service, member satisfaction, claims processing, claims accuracy, telephane on-hold time, etc. The Company also enters
into financial guarantees which can take various forms including, among others, achieving an annual aggragate savings threshold, achieving a
targeted level of savings per-member, per-month or achieving cverall network penetration in defined demographic markets. Far each guarantee, the
Company estimates and records performance based revenug after considering the relevant contractual terms and the data available for the per-
formance based revenue calculation. Pra rata performance based revenue is recognized on an interim basis pursuant to the rights and obligations of
each party upon termination of the cantracts.

Revenug for pharmacy benefit management services in both the Group Health and Medicaid/Public sectors is derived on a pre-negotiated contractual
amount per claim. Revenue is recorded when a pharmacy transaction is processed by the Company. The Company does not record any revenue or
expense related to the sale of pharmaceuticals. In the Group Health business, revenue associated with pharmacy rebates is recorded based on the
contractuat rebates received from the formulary less the pre-negotiated rebates paid to clients. No rebate revenue is collected or recorded related
to the Company's Medicaid/Public business.

Based on information received subsequent to premium billings being sent, histarical trends, had debt write-offs and the collectibility of specific accounts,
the Company estimates, on a manthly basis, the amount of bad debt and future retroactivity and adjusts its revenue and reserves accordingly.

Premiums for services to federal employee groups are subject to audit and review by the OPM on a periodic basis. Such audits are usually a number
of years in arrears. Adjustments are recorded as additional information regarding the audits and reviews becomes available. Any differences
between actual results and estimates are recorded in the period the audits are finalized.
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Contract Acquisition Costs—Costs related to the acquisition of customer contracts, such as commissions paid to outside brokers, are paid on a
monthly basis and expensed as incurred. Regarding the Company’s new Medicare Private Fee for Service business, we advance funded commissions
and have deferred amartization of these costs until 2007, when this new business begins.

Income Taxes—The Company files a consolidated federal tax return for the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company accounts for income taxes
in accordance with SFAS No. 109—"Accounting for Income Taxes.” The deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are determined by multiplying 1he dif-
ferences between the financial reporting and tax reporting bases for assets and liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when
such differences are recavered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes
the enactment date. See Note G to consolidated financial statements for disclosures related to income taxes.

Earnings Per Share—Basic earnings per share based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share assume the exercise of all options and the vesting of all restricted stock using the treasury stock method. Potential common
stock equivalents to purchase 0.7 million, 0.2 million and 1.1 million shares for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
were excluded from the camputation of diluted earnings per share because the potential common stock equivalents were anti-dilutive.

Other Income—0Other income includes interest income, net of fees, of approximately $101.5 million, $59.8 million, and $44.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued "Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incomes taxes recognized in the financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial position
already taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For a tax benefit to be recagnized, a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained
upon examination by applicable taxing authorities. The benefit recognized is the amount that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized
upon final settlement of the tax position. FIN 48 was effective for the Company as of January 1, 2007. The change in net assets as a result of apply-
ing this pronouncement wilt ba a change in accounting principle with the cumulative effect of the change required to be treated as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings. The Company's evaluation of the impact of adoption of FIN 48 is ongoing, and it is anticipated that the
adoption of FIN 48 will not have a material impact on the Company's January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings.

B. Acquisitions

During the three years ended December 31, 2006, the Campany completed two business combinations and ane membership purchase. The Company's
business combinations are all accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results of each acquisition
have been included in the Company's consolidated financial statements since their effective date of acquisition. The purchase price fer each business
combination was allocated to the assets, including the identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities based on estimated fair values. The excess of
the purchase price over the net identifiable assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. The purchase price of the Company’s membership purchases
is allocated to identifiable intangible assets and is being amortized over a useful life of ten to twenty years.

The following table summarizes all business combinations and membership purchases for the three years ended December 31, 2006. The purchase
price of each business combinatian includes the payment for net worth and estimated transition costs. The purchase price, inclusive of ali retroactive
balance sheet settlements to date and transition cost adjustments, is presented below {millions):

Purchase
Effective Date Market Price

Business Combinations
First Heatth Group Corp. {“First Health™) January 28, 2005 Multiple Markets $1.695
Provider Synergies, L.L.C. {"Provider Synergies”} January 1, 2006 Multiple Markets § 22

Membership Purchase
OmniCare Health Plan {"OmniCare™) October 1, 2004 Michigan $ 13
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Effective January 28, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of First Health. First Health is a full service national health benefits services
company that serves the group health, workers' compensation and state public program markets, The Company believes the combination of Coventry
and First Health creates a leading health benefits company with the size, scale and product breadth to be a market leader with significant growth
opportuntties. The Company paid a premium (i.e., goodwill) aver the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired for a
number of reasons, including but not limited to:

* significantly expands the Company’s geographic presence;
* diversifies the Company’s product offerings and client base; and
= significantly increases the Company’s fee-based, non-regulated cash flows.

Each outstanding share of First Health common stock was converted into a right to receive $3.375 cash and 0.2687 shares of Coventry common
stock. As a result of the merger, the Company paid $863.1 million in cash and issued approximately 24.7 million shares of its common stock to stock-
holders of First Health. A value of $784.2 million was assigned to the shares issued based on the average closing price of Coventry comman stock
for the two days before, the day of and the two days after the acquisition announcement date of October 14, 2004.

The total purchase price, including estimated transition costs, for First Health of $1.7 billion was allocated to the assets, including identifiable intangible
assets and liabilities based on estimated fair values. The estimated transition costs of $46.4 million include estimated costs for involuntary
employee termination of $25.6 million, of which $24.8 million has been paid, estimated costs for exiting certain leased building space of $10.0 million,
of which $5.6 million has been paid, and other transition cost accruals of which all has been paid. Deferred tax liabilities associated with the acquisition
were $168.4 million. The following table lists the assigned value of the intangibte assets as of the acquisition date (in millions) and the associated
amortization period:

Estimated Amortization
Fair Value Period (Yrs)
Goodwill $1.3233
Unamartized tradename 858
Customer lists 2125 10
Provide: network 525 20
Amortized tradename 1.2 4
Total intangible assets $1,7353

The Company has allecated the excess purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired of approximately $1.3 billion to goadwill. The
acquired goodwiil is not deductible for income tax purposes. The intangible assets acquired, which are subject to amortization, consist of customer
lists, tradenames, and a provider network and have a weighted-average useful life of approximately 10.8 years. The following table lists the
Company's estimate of the fair value of the tangible assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date {in millions):

Cash, cash equivalents, investments $1708
Praperty, equipment, capitalized soitware, other assets 4937
Medical costs payable 41.8)
Other current liabilities (148.9)
Long-term debt {200.0)
Other long-term liabilities {145.5)

Net tangible assets acquired $128.3
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The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results of First Health have been included
in the Company's consolidated financial statements since January 28, 2005, the date of acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated results of operations assumes the First Health acquisition occurred on January 1, 2005 and 2004 (in miltions, except per share data):

Year ended December 31,
{Pro forma unaudited) 2005 2004
Operating revenues $6.674.6 $6,192.7
Net earnings $ 5079 $ 4285
Earnings per share, basic $ 318 $§ 213
Earnings per share, difuted $ 3N $ 287

The pro forma amounts represent historical operating results of the Company and First Health and include the pro forma effect of Coventry shares
- issued in the acquisition, the amortization of finite lived intangible assets arising from the purchase price allocation, interest expense related to
financing the acquisition and the associated income tax effects of the pra forma adjustments. The 2004 pro forma amounts assume that debt pay
| down and debt cost write-offs related to deht refinancing would have occurred at the same period in 2004 as they occurred in 2005. The pra forma
amounts exclude material, nonrecurring items including the expense related to the purchase of outstanding options of $27.2 million net of tax. The
pro forma amounts are presented for comparison purposes and are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if the
acquisition had been completed at the beginning of the periods presented nor are they necessarily indicative of operating results in future periods.

|

|

: Effective January 1, 20086, the Company completed the acquisition of Provider Synergies, L.L.C. {"Provider Synergies™}, an Ohio limited liability
company. Provider Synergies manages preferred drug lists and negotiates rebates on behalf of state government and commercial clients. The acqui-

! sition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results of Provider Synergies have been included

‘ in the Company's consolidated financial staiements since the date of acquisition. The pro forma effects of this acquisition were not material to the

‘ Company’s consolidated financial statemants.

C. Goodwill And Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and ather intangible assets consist of costs in excess of the fair value of the net tangible assets of subsidiaries or operations acquired
through December 31, 20086.

Goodwill

The Company completed its impairment test of goodwill and has determined that there was na impairment of goodwill as of October 1, 2006, the
Company’s annual impairment test date. The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2006 and Z005 were as
follows {in thousands):

Health Plans First Health Total
Balance, December 31, 2004 $280,615 $ — $ 280,615
Acquisition of First Health — 1,331,940 1,331,941
Impairment loss — — —
Other adjustments {166) — (166)
Balance, December 31, 2005 280,449 1,331.941 1,612,380
Acquisition of Provider Synergies —— 16,736 16,736
Imgairment loss — — —
Other adjustments {195) {8.659) {8.854}

Balance, December 31, 2006 $280,254 $1.330,018 $1,620272




50 f{ COVENTRY HEALTH CARE

Other Intangible Assets
The other intangible asset balances are as follows (in-thousands):

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period
As of December 31, 2006
Amortized other intangibie assets:
Customer Lists $313,496 $66,099 $247,402 3-15 Years
HMQ Licenses 12,600 5.291 $ 7309 15-20 Years
Provider Netwaork 52,500 5,031 $ 47,469 20 Years
Trade Name 1,200 880 $ 320 3 Years
Total amortized other intangible assets $379,796 $77.296 $302,500
Unamortized other intangible assets:
Trade Names $ 85,900 3 — $ 85900 —
Total unamortized other intangible assets $ 85,900 s — $ 85,900
Total other intangible assels $465,695 $7729 $388,400
As of December 31, 2005
Amortized other intangible assets:
Customer Lists $309,080 $34,598 $274,482 10-15 Years
HMO Licenses 12,600 4649 $ 7931 15-20 Years
Provider Network 52,500 2,406 $ 50,004 20 Years
Trade Name 1,200 275 $ 925 4 Years
Total amortized other intangible assets $375,380 $41,928 $333,452
Unamartized other intangible assets:
Trade Names $ 85900 5 — $ 85,900 —
Total unamortized other intangible assets $ 85,900 $8 — $ 85900
Total other intangible assets $461,280 $41,928 $419,352

Other intangible amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $35.4 million, $31.1 million and $2.7 million,
respectively. The increase in other intangible assets and the related amortization is a result of the other intangible assets obtained with the acquisition
of First Health. Estimated intangible amortization expense is $34.3 miflion for the year ending December 31, 2007, $33.9 million for the year ending
December 31, 2008, $32.4 miflion for the year ending December 31, 2009, $32.2 million for the year ending December 31, 2010 and $32.1 million for
the year ending December 31, 2011, The weighted-average amartization period is approximately 11 years for other intangible assets.
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Property and equipment is comprised of the fallawing {in thousands):
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Decembor 31, Depreciation

2006 2005 Period

Lard $ 23864 § 23854 —

Buildings and leasehald improvements 123,387 115,691 5-40 Years

Developed software 134,818 131,140 1-9 Years

Equipment 246,830 217,898 3-7 Years
Sub-total 528,899 488,583
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {213,794} (137.166)
Property 2nd equipment, net $ 315,105 § 351427

of First Health,

E. Investments

balance sheets.

at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $77.9 million, $55.1 million and $14.9 mitlion, respectively.
Included in the depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is $26.9 million, $13.1 million and $0, respectively, of
expense for developed software. The increase in depreciation expense in 2005 was a result of the property and equipment obtained with the acquisition

The Company considers all of its investments as available-for-sale securities and, accordingly, records unrealized gains and losses, except for those
determined to be other-than-temporary impairments, as other comprehensive income {loss} in the stockhotders’ equity section of its consolidated

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain or Yoss and estimated fair value of short-term and long-term investments by security type were as follows

Amaortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value

As of December 31, 2006
State and municipal bonds $ 515399 $3520 $ (3,515) $ 515404
US Treasury & agency securities 108,928 303 (827) 108,304
Mortgage-backed securities 233,670 687 {3,050) 231,297
Asset-backed securities 64,730 {760) 64,193
Corporate debt and other securities 451,727 825 (2,364) 449,588
$1.374,454 $5,558 $(11,126) $1.368,886
Equity investment 54,078
$1.422,964

As of December 31, 2005
State and municipal bonds $ 502,166 $3.811 $ (3.585) $ 502,392
US Treasury & agency securities 1252 m (1.073) 124,429
Mortgage-backed securities 183,989 364 (2,832} 181,541
Asset-backed securities 78,203 439 {951} 77691
Corporate debt and other securities 736,342 1,411 {4,233} 733,520
$1,625,931 $6,316 312674} $1,619,573
Equity investment 51,674

$1.671,247
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of short-term and long-term investments by contractual maturity were as follows at December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

As of December 31, 2006

Maturities:

Within 1 year $ 369.983 $ 369455
110 5 years 380,325 3n.on
5to 10 years 262,409 262,513
Over 10 years 361,737 359,847
Total $1,374,458 1,368,886
Equity investment 54,078
Total short-term and long-term securities $1,422,964

As of December 31, 2005

Maturities:

Within 1 year $ 625864 § 625481
1to5years 405,591 401,310
5to 10 years 256,240 256,752
Over 10 years 338,236 336,030
Total $1625,931 $1.619,573
Equity investment 51,674
Total short-term and long-term securities $1,67M.247

Gross investment gains of $0.2 million and gross investment losses of $0.7 million were realized on sales of investments for the year ended
December 31, 2006. This compares to gross investment gains of $3.0 miltion and gross investment losses of $3.1 million on these sales for the year
ended December 31, 2005, and gross investment gains of $2.0 million and gross investment losses of $1.3 million on these sales for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

The foilowing table shows the Company’s investments” gross unrealized losses and fair value, at December 31, 2006, aggregated by investment
categary and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss pasition {in thousands).

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
State and municipal bonds $ 67,946 $(275) $202,848 $ {3,240 $270,794 $ 13,515)
US Treasury & agency securities 25,535 (77 57.171 (750) 82,706 827)
Mortgage-backed securities 40,021 (140 126,151 {2,920 166,172 {3,060)
Asset-backed securities 12,909 {26) 33,239 (734} 46,148 {760)
Corporate debt and other securities 9,045 {46) 123,032 {2,918) 132,077 {2.964)
Total $155.456 $(o64} $542,441 $(10,562) $697.897 ${11,126}

The unrealized loss reflected on each category aof the Company's investments is almost exclusively the result of interest rate increases subsequent
to the purchase of the investments and not deieriorating credit guality. The Company has the ability and intent to hold those investments until a
recovery of fair value, which may be maturity. As a result, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temperarily impaired
at December 31, 2008.
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Through its acquisition of First Health on January 28, 2005, the Company acquired eight separate investments {tranches}in a limited liability company
that invests in equipment that is leased to third parties. The total investment as of December 31, 2006 was $54.1 million and is accounted for using
the equity method. The Company's proportionate share of the parinership's income since the date of the acquisition was $6.7 and $4.6 million for
the periods ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and is included in ather income. The Company has between a 20% and 25% interest
in the fimited partners share of each individual tranche of the partnership {approximately 10% of the totat partnership).

F. Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™} No. 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment,” {"SFAS 123R") which requires that compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions be recognized
in financial statements. SFAS 123R eliminates the alternative to use the intrinsic method of accounting provided for in Accounting Principles Board
{APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” which generally resulted in no compensation expense recorded in the financial
statements related to the grant of stock options to employees if certain conditions were met.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective methad. Under this method, the fair value of awards
granted after the date of adoption and the unvested portian of previously granted awards outstanding at the date of adoption are included in operating
expenses over the vesting period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the award. In accordance with the modified prospective
methad, prior period amounts presented herein have not been restated to reflect the adoption of SFAS 123R.

As a result of adopting SFAS 123R, the Company recorded $30.7 million of compensation expense related to stock options, or $18.8 million after-tax,
in its statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006. As required in prior years under APB No. 25, the Company recognized forfei-
tures related to stock awards as they occurred. SFAS 123R requires an entity to estimate expected forfeitures at the grant date. As a result, the
Company recorded a favorable $0.5 miltion ($0.3 millien after-tax] cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle upon the adoption of SFAS
123R as it relates to estimated forfeitures. This one time benefit applies to compensation cest recegnized in prior periods for awards that are unvested
on the adoption date and represents an estimate of the number of outstanding instruments upon adoption of SFAS 123R for which the requisite
service is not expected to be rendered. The netincrease of SFAS 123R far stock-based compensation expense reduced both basic and diluted earnings
per share by $0.11 for year ended December 31, 2006. In accordance with SFAS 123R, the Company estimates forfeitures and is recognizing compen-
sation expense only for those share-based awards that are expected to vest.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, for the period beginning January 1, 2006, excess tax benefits from stock awards are presented as financing cash
flows. The excess tax benefits totaled $21.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Such benefits were $38.0 million and $21.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and are presented as a component of operating ¢ash flows.

As af December 31, 2006, the Company had one stock incentive plan, the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive
Pian") under which shares of the Company’s commen stack were authorized for issuance to key employees, consultants and directors in the form of
stock options, restricted stock and other stock-based awards. In May 2008, the Stock Incentive Plan was amended to increase the number of shares
authorized for issuance hy an additional 9.0 million shares. Shares avaitable for issuance under the Stock Incentive Plan were 9.9 million as of
December 31, 2006.

Stock Options

Under the Stock Incentive Plan, the terms and conditions of option grants are established on an individual basis with the exercise price of the
aptions heing equal to not less than 100% of the fair value of the underlying stock at the date of grant. Optians generally become exercisable after
ane year in 25% increments per year and expire ten years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2008, the Stock Incentive Plan had outstanding
options representing 11.3 million shares of common stock.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted- Aggregate

Shares Average Intrinsic Value

{in thousands) Exercise Price {in thousands)
Qutstanding at January 1, 2006 1051 $28.52
Granted 2,650 51
Exercised (1,356) $16.42
Cancelled and expired {504) $34 66

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 1,301 $35.56 $162.613

Exercisable at December 31, 2006 4,445 s24.42 $114,160

The Company has elected to continue to use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model and straight-line amortization of comgensation expense
over the requisite service period of the grant. The Company wili reconsider use of the Black-Scholes-Merton model if additional informaticn
becomes available in the future that indicates another model woutd be more appropriate, of if grants issued in future periods have characteristics
that cannot be reasonably estimated using this model.

The following weighted-average assumptions were used for option grants;

2006 2005 2004
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate 4.9% 38% 3.9%
Expected volatility 335% 32.0% 41.2%
Expected life {in years) 4.0 42 5.0

The Company has not paid dividends in the past nor does it expect to pay dividends in the future. As such, the Company used a dividend yield
percentage of zero. The Company uses a risk-free interest rate consistent with the yield available on a U.S. Treasury note with a term equal to the
expacted term of the underlying grants. The expected volatility was estimated based upon a blend of the implied volatility of the Company's tradeable
options and the historical volatility of the Company’s share price. The expected life was estimated based upon exercise experience of option grants
made in the past to Company employees.

The Black-Schales-Merton weighted-average value of options granted was § 17.24, $14.96 and $13.37 per share for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $52.4 million, $83.8 million and $50.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, there was $73.1 miltion of total unrecognized compensation cost (net of
expected forfeitures) related to nonvested stock option grants which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.

Information with respect to stock options outstanding and stock options exercisable at December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Options Outstanding {in thousands) Options Exercisable (in thousands)

Weighted
Numher Average Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding Remainring Average Exercisable Average
Range of Exercise Prices at 12/31/06 Contractual Life Exercise Price at 12/31/06 Exercise Price
$ 222-331.80 2,963 51 467 2314 $12.56
$31.80-347.14 3,627 11 $3an 1,538 $33.02
$47.14-348.25 2,307 B5 $47.90 561 5479
$48.25-$59.01 2404 94 $51.67 32 $56.96

$ 2.22-859.01 11,30 75 $35.56 4,445 $i4.42
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Restricted Stock Awards

The value of the restricted shares is amaortized over various vesting periods through 2010. The Company recorded compensatien expense related to
restricted stock grants, including restricted stock granted in prior periods, of approximately $25.0 millicn, $21.9 million and $15.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total unrecognized compensation cost related to the restricted stock was $39.9
million at December 31, 2006, and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.4 years. The total fair vatue of shares vested
during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $36.1 million, $42.7 million and $ 29.4 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes restricted stock award activity for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair

{in thousands) Value Per Share

Nonvested, January 1, 2006 1,769 $38.96
Granted 309 $50.75
Vested (689) $30.17
Forfeited (1m) $4569
Nonvested, December 31, 2006 1278 $40.91

Pro Forma Disclosures
The following table illustrates the effect on net earnings and earnings per common share {“EPS”) as if we had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123 to stock-based compensation during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
Net earnings, as reported $501,639 $337.117
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net earnings, net of tax 13,635 9,603
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair-value-based methed
for all awards, net of tax {29,033} {18,383}
Net earnings. pro forma $486,241 $378,337
EPS, basic—as reported $ 318 § 255
EPS. basic—pro forma $ 308 $ 248
EPS, dituted—as reported $ 310 § 248
EPS, diluted—pro forma $ 307 $ 242

G. Income Taxes
The provision [benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Current provision:
Federal $314.219 $245,304 3175671
State 36,992 37.388 18,522
Deferred (benefit) provision:
Federal {13,510) 17.815 (3.908)
State {1,398} (2.721) 1,589

Income Tax Provision Expense $336,303 $297.786 $189,874
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The Company's effactive tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate of 35% as a result of the following:

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Statutory federal tax rate 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
Effect of:

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2N% 2.85% 2.48%

Release of state NOL valuation allowance — — {0.16%}

Tax exempt investment income (0.60%) {0.59%) {0.76%)

Remuneraticn disallowed 0.35% 0.17% 0.49%

QOther 0.06% {0.18%} 11.02%)
Income tax provision (benefit} 37.52% 37.25% 36.03%

The effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant partions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2008
and 2005 are presented below (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforward $ 22271 $ 21751
Deferred compensation 32,191 27,086
Deferred revenue 35N 3,90
Medical liabilities 10,034 6,868
Accounts receivable 898 6,286
Other accrued liabilities 35233 38,400
Other assets 5,867 3,663
Unrealized loss on securities 2,048 2615
Gross deferred tax assets 112,780 110,570
Less valuation allowance — —
Deferred tax asset 112,780 110,570

Deferred tax liabilities:
Other liabilities {339) 11,346
Depreciation (32,009) 29,117
Intangibles {125,084) {132,797)
Internally developed software {15,520) {22.192)
Tax benefit of limited partnership investment {63,707} {79,351)
Gross deferred tax liabilities {236,659) {252,121)
Net deferred tax liability! $(123,879) $(141,551)

Minciudes $59.4 million and $57.7 million classified as current assets at December 31, 2008 and 2005, respectively. and $(183.3) million and ($199.3) milfion ciassified
as noncurrent liabilittes at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had approximately $75 million of federal and $177 milion of state tax net operating loss carryforwards. The
Federal net operating losses were primarily acquired through varicus acquisitions. The net operating loss carryforwards can be used to reduce future
taxable income and expire over varying periods through the year 2026.

There is no valuation allowance for the 2006 and 2005 deferred tax assets as the Company believes that the realization of the deferred tax assets,
including net operating losses, is more likely than not due to the future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences.

Current income taxes payable of $84.1 million and $45.3 million are incluged in “other accrued liabilities” an the consalidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.
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H. Employee Benefit Plans

Stock Incentive Plan

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had ane stack incentive plan, the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan {the "Stock Incentive
Plan”) under which shares of the Company's comman stock were authorized for issuance 1o key employees, consultants and directors in the form of
stock options, restricted siock and other stock-based awards. In May 2006, the Stock incentive Plan was amended to increase the number of shares
authorized for issuance by an additional 9.0 million shares.

The Stock Incentive Plan is authorized to grant either incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock and other stock-hased awards at the discreticn of the Compensation and Benefits Committee of the Board of Directors. Shares available for
issuance under the Stock Incentive Plan were 8.9 million and 3.5 miltion as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For more information
regarding the Company's stock-based compensation, please refer to Note F, Stock-Based Compensatian.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company terminated the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan, implemented
in 1994, allowed substantially all employees who meet length of service requirements to set aside a portion of their salary for the purchase of the
Company's comman stock. At the end of each plan year, the Company issued the stock to participating employees at an issue price equal to B5% of
the lower of the stock price at the end of the plan year or the average stock price, as defined in the plan. The Company issued 86,500 and 38,900
shares in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Employee Retirement Plans

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had one defined contribution retirement plan qualifying under the Internal Revenue Code Section 4011k): the
Coventry Health Care, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan {the “Savings Plan”). All employees of Coventry Health Care, Inc. and employees of its subsidiar-
ies can alect to participate in the Savings Plan. T. Rowe Price is the custodial trustee of all Savings Plan assets, participant loans and the Coventry
Health Care, Inc. common stock in the Savings Plan.

Under the Savings Plan, participants may defer up 10 75% of their eligible compensation, limited by the maximum compensation deferral amount
permitted by applicable law. The Company makes matching contributions in the Company’s common stock equal to 100% of the participant’s contri-
bution on the first 3% of the participant's eligible compensation and equal to 50% of the participant’s contribution on the second 3% of the
participant’s eligible compensation. Participants will vest in the Company’s matching centributions in 50% increments annually on their anniversary
date over a period of two years of service with the Company. Effective January 1, 2006, the Savings Plan was amended to provide 100% vesting for
all employer matching coniributions made after January 1, 2006. The Savings Plan permits divestiture, whereby employees with three or more years
of service were eligible 10 sel! the employer match portion of the Coventry common stock in their accounts, during certain times of the year, and
transfer the proceeds to other Coventry 401(k} funds of their choosing. All casts of the Savings Plan are funded by the Company and participants as
they are incurred.

The Company previously had other 401(k} plans that it sponsored. These plans arose from acquisitions of other companies and these plans have
either since been terminated or merged into the Savings Plan. The cost of the Savings Plan, including the acquired plans, for 2006, 2005 and 2004
was approximately $18.9 million, $14.5 millian, and $6.3 million, respectively.

401(k) Restoration and Deferred Compensation Plan

As of December 31, 2008, the Company was the sponsar of a 401(k) Restoration and Deferred Compensation Plan ("RESTORE"}, currently known as
the Coventry Health Care, Inc. 401(k) Resteration and Deferred Compensation Plan. Under the RESTORE, participants may defer up to 15% of their
base salary and up to 100% of any bonus awarded. Effective January 1, 2006, the RESTORE was amended 1o enable participants to defer up to 75%
of their base salary. The Company makes matching contributions equal to 100% of the participant’s contribution on the first 3% of the participant’s
compensation and 50% of the participant’s contribution on the second 3% of the participant's compensation. Participants vest in the Campany’s
matching contributions ratably over two years. All costs of the RESTORE are funded by the Company as they are incurred.

The cost, principally employer matching contributions, of the RESTORE charged to aperations for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.2 million, $1.1 miltion
and $1.0 million, respectively.
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Executive Retention Plans

As of December 31, 2005, the Company was the sponsor of twa deferred compensation plans that were designed to promote the retention of key
senior management and to recognize their strategic importance to the Company. During 20086, these plans were settled and paid out in cash and a
new plan was created with similar design features. The fixed dollar and stock equivalent allocations charged to operations for these plans were $5.0
million, $15.6 million, and $11.6 million in 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and the liability for these plans was $1.2 million and $37.0 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

I. Debt

The Company's gutstanding debt was as follows at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

December 31,

2006 2005
8.125% Senior notes due 2/15/12 $170,500 $170,500
5.875% Senior notes due 1/15/12 250,000 250,000
6.125% Senior notes due i/15/15 250,000 250,000
5-year Term loan 90,000 100,000
Total Debt $760,500 §770,500

On February 1, 2002, the Company completed a transaction o sell $175.0 million original 8.125% senior notes due February 15, 2012 in a private
placement. These semiar notes were then registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Interest on the notes is payable on February 15
and August 15 each year. In August 2003, the Company repurchased a portion of its senior notes with a face value of $4.5 million and a weighted
average premium of 8.9%. The carrying value of the senior notes is equal to the face value and the fair value is based on the quoted market prices.
As of December 31, 2006, the fair value of the 8.125% senior notes was $176.5 millian. See Note Q for subseguent event information related to
these senior notes.

On January 28, 2005, the Company completed the private placement of $250 million aggregate principal amount of 5 7/8% senior nates due 2012
and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 6 1/8% senior notes due 2015. These senior notes have since been exchanged and are now registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The senior notes are general unsecured obligations of the Company and rank equal in right of payment
to all of the Company’s existing and future senior debt, including its 8 1/8% senior notes due 2012 and its new credit facilities as described betow. As
of December 31, 2006, the fair value of the 5 7/8% senior notes and the 6 1/8% senior nates was $245.6 million and $247.2 million, respectively.

On January 28, 2005, the Company also entered into senior, unsecured credit facilities consisting of a $300 million five-year term loan and a $150 million
five-year revolving credit facility, of which $65 million was drawn at closing. The proceeds from the sale of the senior notes and the credit facilities
were used to finance the acquisition of all of First Health's outstanding common stock, refinance the existing indebtedness of First Health and pay
refated transaction fees and expenses. During the six months ended June 30, 2005, the Company made non-scheduled payments of $140.0 million
and a scheduled repayment of $7.5 million on the credit facilities leaving a balance of $217.5 million.

On June 30, 2005, the Company entered into new credit facilities providing for a five-year revolving credit facility in the principal amount of $350 million,
of which $117.5 million was drawn at closing, and a five-year term loan in the principal amount of $100 million. The new term loan facility requires regu-
farly scheduled annual payments of principal in the amount of $10 miflion per year. The first payment under this agreement was made during the quarter
ended June 30, 2006. Unless terminated earlier, the revolving credit facility wilt mature five years after closing and is payable in full upon its maturity
on the termination date. The Company used the net proceeds of the borrowings under the new credit facilities to pay down and terminate its original
term loan and revolving credit facility. On July 29, 2005, the Company paid off the putstanding balance of $117.5 million on its revolving credit facility.

During the guarter ended June 30, 2005, as a result of the refinancing, the Company wrote off $5.4 million of deferred financing costs related to the
original credit facilities.

Loans under the new credit facilities bear interest at a margin or spread in excess of either {1) the one-, two-, three-, six-, nine-, or twelve-month rate
for Eurodollar deposits {the "Eurodoltar Rate™) or (2) the greater of the federal funds rate plus 0.5% or the base rate of the Administrative Agent
("Base Rate”), as selected by the Company. The margin or spread depends on the Company's non-credit-enhanced Jong-term senior unsecured debt
ratings and varies from 0.450% to 1.750% for Eurododlar Rate advances and from 0.000% to 0.500% for Base Rate advances.
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The Company's senior notes and credit facilities require compliance with specified financial ratics and contain certain covenants and restrictions
regarding incurring additional debt, limiting dividends or ather restricted payments, restricting transactions with affiliates, disposing of assets and
cansolidations or mergers. The Company has complied with all ratios and covenants under the senior notes and credit facilities.

As of December 31, 2006, the aggregate maturities of debt based on their contractual terms, are as follows (in thousands):

2007 $ 10,000
2008 10,060
2009 10,00C
200 60,000
2011 —
Thereafter 670,500
Total $760,500

]J. Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2006, the Company s contractually obligated to make the following minimum lease payments within the next five years and
thereafter (in thousands):

Lease Payments Sublease Income Net Lease Payments
2007 § 26,993 341,716} § 25,277
2008 25,842 {1,480 24,362
2009 21,691 (1,351} 20,340
2016 16,532 1,073 15,459
20 14,047 (1,073) 12,974
Thereafier 20,302 {1,436) 18,866
Total $125,407 $(8.129) $117.278

The Company operates in leased facilities with original lease terms of up to thirteen years with options for renewal. Total rent expense was $30.3
million, $30.2 million and $19.0 million, for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, the Company has been named as a defendant in various legal actions such as actions seeking payments for claims
denied by the Company, medical malpractice actions, employment related claims and other various claims seeking monetary damages. The claims
are in various stages of proceedings and scme may ultimately be brought to trial. Incidents occurring through December 31, 2006 may result in the
assertion of additional claims. The Company maintains general liability, professional liability and employment practices liability insurances in
amounts that it believes are appropriate, with varying deductibles for which it maintains reserves. The professional liability and employment
practices liability insurances are carried through its captive subsidiary. Although the results of pending litigation are always uncertain, we do not
believe the results of such actions currently threatened ar pending, including those described below, will individually or in the aggregate, have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

The Company is a defendant in the pravider track of the In Re: Managed Care Litigation filed in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Florida, Miami Division, Multi-District Litigation ("MDL"), No. 1334, in the action captioned, Charles B. Shane., et al., vs. Humana, Inc., et al.
This tawsuit was filed by a group of physicians as a class action against Coventry and nine other companies in the managed care industry. The
plaintifs alleged violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“"RICO"}, conspiracy to violate RICO and aiding and abetting a
scheme to violate RICO. In addition to these federal law claims, the complaint included state law claims for breach of contract, violations of various
state prompt payment laws and equitable claims fer unjust enrichment and quanturt meruit. The trial court dismissed several of the state law claims
and ordered all physicians who had an arbitration provision in their provider contracts to submit their direct BICO claims and their remaining state law
claims to arbitration. As a consequence of this ruling, the plaintiffs who had arbitration provisions voluntarily dismissed their claims that were subject
to arbiteation. In its order, the trial court also held that the plainti{fs’ claims of (1] conspiracy to violate RICO and (2) aiding and abetting violations of
RICC were not subject to arbitration. The trial court then certified various subclasses of plaintiffs with respect to these two federal law claims.
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Seven defendants have entered into settlement agreements with the plaintiffs, which have received final approval from the trial court. On June 16,
2008, the trial caurt filed an order in the Shane fawsuit which granted summary judgment on ail claims in faver of the Company. The trial court also
granted summary judgment on all claims in favor of two other defendants. The plaintiffs have appealed the trial court’s summary judgment order to
the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals. The Shane lawsuit has triggered the filing of copycat class action complaints by ather health care providers
such as chiropractors, pediatrists, acupuncturists and other licensed health care profassianals. Each of these actions has been transferred to the
MDL and have been designated as "tag-along” actions. The court has entered an order which stays all proceedings in the tag-along actions until all
pre-trial proceedings in the Shane action have been concluded. Although the Company can not predict the outcome, management believes that the
Shane and the tag-along actions will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or its results of operations. Management also
believes that the claims asserted in these lawsuits are without merit and the Company intends to defend its position.

Capitation Arrangements

A small percentage of the Company's membership is covered by global capitation arrangements. Under the typical arrangement, the provider receives
a fixed percentage of premium to cover all the medical costs provided to the globally capitated members. Under some capitated arrangements, physi-
cians may also receive additional compensation from risk sharing and other incentive arrangements. Global capitation arrangements limit the
Company’s exposure to the risk of increasing medical costs, but expose the Company to risk as to the adequacy of the financial and medical care
resources of the provider organization. In addition to global capitation arrangements, the Company has capitation arrangements for ancillary ser-
vices, such as mental health care. The Company is ultimately responsible for the coverage of its members pursuant to the customer agreements. To
the extent that the respective provider organization faces financial difficulties or otherwise is unable to perform its obligations under the capitation
arrangements, the Company will be required to perform such obligations. Consequently, the Campany may have to incur costs in excess of the amounts
it would otherwise have to pay under the ariginal global or ancillary capitation arrangements. Medical costs associated with capitation arrangements
made up approximately 5.1%, 6.5%, and 7.1% of the Company’s tota! medical costs for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respac-
tively. Membership associated with global capitation arrangements was apgroximately 110,000, 116,000 and 127,000 as of December 31, Z006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

K. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, investments in fixed income securities and
accounts receivable. The Company invests its excess cash in state and municipal bonds, U.S. Treasury and agency securities, mortgage-hacked
securities, asset-backed securities, corporate debt and other securities. Investmants in marketable securities are managed within guidelines estab-
lished by the Board of Directors, which only altaw for the purchase of investment-grade fixed income securities and limit the amount that may be
invested in any one issuer. The fair value of the Company's financial instruments is equivalent to their carrying value and, although there is some
credit risk associated with these instruments, the Company believes this risk to be minimal.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables is limited due to the large number of customers comprising the Company's customer base
and their breakdown amaong geographical locations. The Company believes the zllowance for doubtfui accounts adequately provides for estimated
losses as of December 31, 2006. The Company has a risk of incurring losses if such allowances are not adequate.

L. Statutory Information

The Company's HMO and insurance company subsidiaries are required by state regulatory agencies to maintain minimum surplus balances, thereby
limiting the dividends the parent may receive from its regulated entities. Quring 2008, the Company received $297 million in dividends from its
regulated subsidiaries.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners [“NAIC") has praposed that states adopt risk-based capital (“BBC") standards that, if adopted,
would generally require higher minimum capitalization requirements for HMOs and other risk-bearing health care antities. RBC is a method of measuring
the minimum amount of capital appropriate for a managed care organization to support its overall business operations in consideration of its size and
risk profile. The managed care organization's RBC is calculated by applying factors to various assets, premiums and reserve items. The factor is higher
for those items with greater underlying risk and Jower for less risky items. The adequacy of a managed care organization’s actual capital can then be
measured by a comparison to its ABC as determined by the formula. The Company's health plans are required to submit an RBC report to the NAIC
and their domiciled stzte’s department of insurance with their annual filing.
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Regulators will vse the RBC results to determine if any regulatory actions are required. Regulatory actions that could take place, if any, range from
filing a financial action plan explaining how the plan will increase its statutory net worth to the approved Jevels, to the health plan being placed
under regulatory control.

The majority of states in which we operate health plans have adopted a risk-based capital ("RBC") pelicy that recommends the health plans maintain
statutory reserves at or above the ‘Company Action Level” which is currently equal to 200% of their RBC. We have adopted an internal policy to
maintain all of our regulated subsidiaries’ statutory capital and surplus at or above 250% of their RBC and a level oi 300% in aggregate (referred
to below as “300% of RBC"). Some states in which our regulated subsidiaries operate require deposits to be maintained with the respective states’
departments of insurance. The table belaw summarizes the Company’s statutory reserve information as of December 31, 2005 and 2005 (in mitlions,
except percentage data).

2005 2005
Regulated capita! and surplus $1,070.6 $897.4
300% of RBC $ 666.5% 505,36
Excess capital and surplus above 300% of RBC $ apape $342.10
Capital and surplus as percentage of RBC 481%™ 485%"
Statutory deposits $ 94 $ 494

“ynaudited
The increase in capital and surplus for our regulated subsidiaries is a result of net earnings partially offset by dividends paid to the parent company.

Excluding funds held by entities subject to regulation and excluding our investment in an equipment leasing limited liability company, we had cash
and investments of approximately $563.1 million and $347.2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase was primarily due to
the dividends received from our regulated subsidiaries and earnings from our non-regulated First Health business offset, in part, by the share repur-
chases discussed previously.

M. Other Income

Other income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 includes interest income, net of fees, of approximately $101.5 miltion, $59.8
million and $44.1 million, respectively.

N. Share Repurchase Program

The Company's Board of Directors has approved a program to repurchase its outstanding common stock. Stock repurchases may be made from time
to time at prevailing prices on the open market, by block purchase or in private transactions. In February 2006, our Board of Directors approved an
increase to the share repurchase program in an amount equai to 5% of our outstanding common stock, thus increasing our repurchase authorization
by B.1 million shares. Under the share repurchase program, the Company purchased 4.6 million shares of the Company's common stack during 2006,
at an aggregate cost of $256.1 mitlion, no shares were purchased in 2005 and 3.0 million shares during 2004, at an aggregate cost of $84.6 million.
The total remaining commaon shares the Company is authorized to repurchase under this program is 6.2 million as of December 31, 2006. Excluded
from these amounts are shares purchased in exchange for employee payroll taxes on vesting of restricted stock awards as these purchases are not
part of the program.

0. Segment Information

The Company has two reportable segments: Health Plans and First Health. Each of these segments is managed separately and separate cperating
results are available that are evaluated by ihe chief operating decision maker. The Health Plans segment provides commercial, Medicare and Medicaid
products to a cross section of emplayer groups and individuals. Commercial products include HMQ, PPO and PQS products. HMO products provide
comprehensive health care benefits to members primarily through a primary care physician. PPO and POS products permit members to participate in
managed care but allow them the flexibility to utilize out-of-network providers in exchange for increased out-of-pocket costs. The Company provides
comprehensive health benefits to members participating in Medicare and Medicaid programs and receives premium paymenis fram federal and
state governments.
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The First Health segment provides services to the Group Health and Specialty sectors. The Group Health business offers its managed care and
administrative products to commercial payors in three customer classifications;

¢ National Accounts—a vanety of stand-alone managed care services and a portfolio of integrated health plan products to self-insured payors

* Federal Employees HMealth Benefits Program—a variety of managed care and administrative services available to federal employees
and annuitants

s Network Rental—national PPO network and other managed care products to national, regional and local third party administrators and
insurance carriers

The Specialty business offers network managed care and administrative services to two customer classifications:

* Medicaid/Public Sector—offers products and services more specialized to the needs of state governmenis as public sector health pragrams
move toward more efficient utilization of health services. Product offerings include pharmacy benefit management, clinical management and
fiscal intermediary servicas

* Workers' Compensation Services—managed care administrative services including access to our provider netwaork, bill review and clini-
cal management

The table helow summarizes the Company's reportable segments {in thousands). “Other” represents the elimination of fees charged between
segments. First Health only includes resuits since the date of acquisition. Disclosure of total assets by reportable segment has not been disclosed,
as they are not reported on a segment basis internally by the Company and are not reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker:

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Health Plans First Health Other Total

Operating Revenues:
Managed care premiums $6,776.217 $ .04 s — $6,857,30
Management services 124,576 758,439 (6,560} 876,455
Total operating revenues 6,900,853 839,463 (6,560) 1,733,756
Total operating expenses 6,211,728 687,585 (6,560 6,892,753
Operating earnings $ 689125 $151,878 s - $ 841,003

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Health Plans First Health' Other Total

Operating Revenues;
Managed care premiums $5,686,250 $ 41912 $ — $5,728,162
Management services 119,573 170,402 (6,891} 883,084
Total operating revenues 5805823 812,314 (6,891} 6,611,246
Total operating expenses 5,202,702 623,617 (6,891} 5,819,428
Operating earnings § 603121 $188,687 § — $ 791818

Wlinciludes results since January 28, 2005, the date of acquisition.
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The Health Plan operations are aligned in several insured products. The Company believes identifying the gross margin and medical loss ratio
{"MLR"} calculation from each of these products is useful in undersianding the Company's results of operations and is summarized in the table
below (in thousands}:

Years Ended December 31,

Medicare Medicare

Commercial Advantage Medicaid Part D™ Total

2006
Revenues $4,529,636 $814,624 $762,093 $669,924 $6.776,277
Medical costs 3519,641 647,178 652,198 565,856 5,384,873
Gross margin $1,009,935 $167,446 $109,895 $104,068 $1.391.404
MLR n.5% 719.4% 85.6% 84.5% 195%

2005
Revenues $4,255577 $676.349 $754,324 $ — $5,686,250
Medical costs 3.338.944 542 978 638,415 — 4,520,287
Gross margin $ 916,833 $133.421 $1%5,909 5 — $1,165,963
MLR 78.5% 80.3% 84.6% n/a 79.5%

2004
Revenues $4,024. 219 $564,779 $609,601 $ — $5,198,599
Medical costs 3,182,732 470611 532,552 — 4,185,895
Gross margin $ 841,487 $ 94168 § 77,049 $ — $1,012,704
MLR 79.1% 83.3% 87.4% n/a 80.5%

MRepresents the Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Plan and excludes the health plan Medicare Advantage business.

First Health operations are aligned into two sectors. The Company believes identifying the revenue from each of these sectors is useful in understanding
the Company's results of operations. Revenue fram the Company's First Health sectors since the date of acquisition is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended Period Ended"

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

National Accounts $113,990 $141,283
Federal Employees Health Benefits Plan 208177 204,678
Network Bental 126,573 89,442
Group Health Subtotal 443,740 435,403
Medicaid/Public Sector 184,503 183,197
Workers' Compensation 206,220 193,714
Specialty Business Subtotal 390,723 376,911
Total First Health Revenue $339,463 $812.14

includes resuits since Janvary 28, 2005, the date of acquisition.
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P. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly results of operations (in thousands, except per share data) for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005. Due to rounding of quarterly results, total amounts for each year may differ immaterially from the annual results.

Quarters Ended

March 31, 2006 June 30, 2006 September 30, 2006 December 31, 2006
Operating revenues $1.938. 17 $1,944,909 $1,809,136 $1,940,995
Operating earnings 182,19 206,588 224,281 27,014
Earnings beforg income taxes 192,798 217422 238,101 247,428
Net earnings 120,581 135,454 141,517 156,094
Basic earnings per share 0.76 0.86 043 099
Diluted earnings per share 0.74 0.84 0.92 097

Quarters Ended

March 31, 2005 June 30, 2005 September 30, 2005 December 31, 2005
(Operating revenues $1.565,200 $1.652.957 $1,674,189 $1.718.900
Operating earnings 178,474 207,457 210,023 195,864
Earnings before income 1axes 179,523 206,368 212,056 201,479
Net earnings 112,651 129,496 133,065 126.428
Basic earnings per share 0.75 0.81 083 0.79
Diluted earnings per share 073 0.79 0.81 077

Q. Subsequent Events

On February 1, 2007, the Company purchased certain assets, including membership of approximately 31,000 members, from FirstGuard Health Plan
Missouri, Ing., a wholly owned subsidiary of Centene Corporation,

On February 8, 2007, the Company announced it has signed a definitive agreement to acquire Concentra, Inc.'s workers’ compensation managed care
services businesses. The Company wilt acquire the Concentra businesses for $387.5 million in an all-cash transaction expected to close in 90 to 180
days from that date, subject to closing conditions, regulatory and other customary approvals.

On February 15, 2007, the Company redeemed all $170.5 million of its outstanding 8.125% senier notes. The Company redeemed the senior notes at
a redemption price equal to 104.1% of the principai amount plus interest accrued on the redemption date. The funds for payment of the redemption
price were provided by existing cash.
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Controls and Procedures
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Coventry's management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal contral over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the U.S. Securities
Exchange Act of 1934} is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the Company’s assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that the
Company’s receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with autharizations of the Company’s management and directors; and {3}
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that
could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control gver financial reparting may net prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evalu-
ation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk ihat controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ar that the
degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Coventry's management has performed an assessment of the effectiveness of the Campany’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006 based on criteria established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {("C0S0"), Internal Controls—
Integrated Framework, and believes that the COSO framework is a suitable framework for such an evaluation. Management has concluded that the
Company’s internal control over financiat reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company’s cansolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006, has issued an attestation report on management's assessment of the Company’s interna! control over financial reporting
which is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation as of the end of the period cavered by this report of the effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and procedures”
{as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ), under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer. Based upon our evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that
our disclosure controfs and procedures are effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no significant changes in our internal control gver financial regorting during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm |

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Coventry Health Care, Inc. l

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annua! Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, that Coventry Health Care, Inc. {the "Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 20086,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Gur respensibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opimian on the effectiveness of the company's internal control aver financial reparting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board {United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abgut whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating manage-
ment's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A compa-
ny's internal contral over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; [2) provide reasonable assurance that transac-
tions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reparting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evalu-
ation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008,
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based an the COSQ criteria. :

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Beard (United States), the Company’s con-
solidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stackholders’ equity, and cash
flaws for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2066 of Coventry Health Care, Inc., and our report dated February 28, 2007
expressed an unqualified epinion thereon,

éwmt v MLLP

Ernst & Young LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
February 28, 2007
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350 as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Dale B. Wolf, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Coventry Health Care, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e}and 15d-15{e}) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15tf] and 15d-15(f]) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure contrals and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal cantrol aver financial reparting. or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reparting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal centrol
over financial reporting: and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
t0 the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or cperation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal centrol over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Dale B. Wolf

Dale B. Wolf
Chief Executive Officer and Director
Date: February 28, 2007
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

|, Shawn M. Guertin, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Coventry Health Care, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misieading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial informaticn included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s ather certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e}and 15d-15{e}) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Aules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f}} for the registrant and have:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our super-
vision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparaticn of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness cof the registrant’s disclosure contrals and procedures and presented in this report our conclusians about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this repart any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatien of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of diracters (or persons performing the equivalent functiens):

a.

b,

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control aver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Shawn M. Guertin

Shawn M, Guertin
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Date: February 28, 2007
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Caventry Health Care, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-X for the period ending December 31, 2008, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the "Report”}, each of the undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.
1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

{1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
{2} The information contained in the Repoart fairly presents, in all matenial respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Campany.

Date: February 28, 2007

By: /s/ Daie B. Wolf

Dale B. Wolf
Chief Executive Dfficer and Director

By: /s/ Shawn M. Guertin

Shawn M, Guertin
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

The Company has submitted an ungualified Section 12{a) CEO Certification to the NYSE in 2005 pursuant to Section 303A.12 of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s common stock for the five years ending December 31, 2006
with the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and a Custom Peer Group Index compiled by Zach's Investment Research, Inc.,
assuming an investment of $100 on December 31, 2001. The fellewing companies are included in the Custom Peer Group Index (and the retums of
each company have heen weighted according to its relative stock market capitalization at the beginning of each period for which a return is indi-
cated): Aetna Inc., CIGNA Corporation, Health Net, Inc., Humana Inc., Sierra Health Services, Inc., UnitedHealth Group Incorparated, and Wellpoint
Health Networks, Inc.

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURNS
Comparison of 5-Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
December 2001 -December 2006
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: -a Coventry Health Care, Inc. = S&P 500 -n- Peer Group -»- Peer Group + Coventry Health Care
Dec. M Doc.02 Dec.03 Dec.04 Dec.05 Dec. 06
Coventry Health Care $100.00 $145.50  $32325  §399.03  $64247  $564.50
S&P 500 ndex $100.00 $7789 $10023 $111.13  $11657  $134.98
Peer Group $100.00 $ 9915  $14066  $213.33 830009  $290.09
Peer Graup & Ceventry Health Care $100.00  $10032  $14496 $21774  $31688  $296.51

Note: The Stock Price Performance Shewn On The Graph Above Is Not Necessarily Indicative Of Future Price Performance.
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Forward-looking statements are defined as
statements that are not lustoncal tacts and includs
those statements ralating to future events or future
financiat performance Actual performance may be
s{gnilicantty impacted by certam nisks and uncertain-
ves, ncluding those described in Coventry's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
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